S

T ETEERARL2T
JIAHUA STORES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(RESHEAMALIERLE])
(Stock Code R L3% : 00602)




IEaEE

2|22z (2]

CONTENTS
H &%

Corporate Information UNGIE=§ 2 2-5
Chairman’s Statement EERWmE 6-10
Biography of Directors and Senior Management EENaEEEABHE 11-13
Management Discussion and Analysis BEEEREIMN 14-26
Corporate Governance Report TEERRE 27-35
Report of the Directors EEgRE 36-53
Independent Auditor's Report BN AZEREN RS 54-55
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 424 2HE & 56
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position AR R 57-58
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity IREEmEER 59
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows MERERER 60-61
Notes to the Financial Statements p T E AN 62-146

Five-Year Financial Summary T EB IS E 147-148




CORPORATE INFORMATION
DNEER

Stock Code B 434X 55

00602 00602

Registered Office TEMPEE

Cricket Square Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681 P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111 Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands Cayman Islands

Head Office and Principal Place of EREMBEEN TEZSEME
Business in Hong Kong

Suite 715, 7th Floor EE

Ocean Centre, Harbour City k-3

5 Canton Road RYDIR

Tsimshatsui R ES5R

Kowloon YEEIEF H D

Hong Kong TETI5E

Head Office and Principal Place of FERAEAREER T EEEE
Business in the PRC

4/F a2

Jiahua Ming Yuan i)

No. 2146 Xinhu Road B0 E

Baoan Central District R 214653

Shenzhen EEZ

The PRC 418

Company Website NETF DA

www.szbjh.com www.szbjh.com

Auditor ¥ B A

BDO Limited B EEREREBAERAR

Certified Public Accountants BLEERAD

25th Floor o

Wing On Centre THER1115

111 Connaught Road Central KZZ AL

Hong Kong 254

Authorised Representatives BEAR

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun HEpER ST

Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo AR 5 A

2 Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015




Corporate Information (Continued)
NRER (')

As to Hong Kong law
Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

26th Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

As to the Cayman Islands law
Conyers Dill & Pearman

Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

As to PRC law

Guang Dong Pinfang Law Firm
Room 501, Main Building

Peach Technology Innovation Park
Baoan District

Shenzhen

The PRC

Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 15686

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

BBEE
FARAE AR EADTT
e

iR
FRETEIZ157
18K E261E

FEREEE

Conyers Dill & Pearman
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PEEE

ER an 77 R ENE T
&

RYIH

BXE
IR B BRI E £ 12
501=

Royal Bank of Canada Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road

P.O. Box 1586

Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands

BEZBHELARAT
BB

ERREHR1835R

B 02218

—T-REFR



Location of

Jiahua Stores
TERIFVEE

O &4t Taipei
@)
Z7 Hong Kong

¥ = Dongguan

AN ARE Gongming
g B.

0! —
RS
. J.  Baoan District
/J’#E S tligle] . ;;“iﬂll_l"ﬁ p
. A& JE Shiyan «




Longhua BEZE Shajing #




EEREE

ek | L] |

chasaNBNENEER JH
!','.. EuppEmET ﬂi'
3 5] * ue




The world economy was still on the wane in 2015. Global economic
growth has been slowed down from 2014 and continued to show
a highly fragmented growth pattern. The growth rate in developed
countries increased steadily while that in emerging markets and
developing countries saw an overall decrease. Given the overall
sluggish economic recovery, lack of driving force and uneven
growth, key indicators dropped. Statistical data suggested that
global economic growth rate was 3.1% in 2015, down by 0.3% as
compared with 2014, falling behind the general expectation at the
beginning of the year. Among them, the growth rate in developed
countries was 2.0% while that in emerging markets and developing
countries was 4.0%. The market is poised for a new round of
technological reformation and industrial restructuring, intensifying
the uneven growth in different economies. For developed countries,
US recovery was relatively stable. The Euro zone was walking out
from the debt crisis through quantitative easing measures and
implementation of manufacturing industry upgrade. However, it was
persecuted by deflation and migrants issues, which have weakened
its growth momentum. Despite the perception that the Japanese
economy grew rapidly under stimulus measures, the overall growth
rate was weak with mixed data. Emerging markets and developing
countries continued their slowdown trend over the past five years,
with the conditions of Latin America (led by Brazil) were particularly
critical. Generally, the economy in developed countries remained
growing at a slower pace.

The economy of China was operating at a reasonable level with
persisting new growth momentum. In terms of overall economy,
despite a gradual quarterly decrease in the growth rate throughout
the year, economic growth rate remained at a reasonable level of
about 7%, contributing approximately 30% to the growth of the
world economy. High-end equipment manufacturing became a
key driver to growth in export. With a number of new technologies,
industries, business pattern, industry model, organization structure
and emerging enterprises (with the Internet segment leading the
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERWME(E)

way) rising to prominence and keep expanding, the motto “public
entrepreneurship and mass innovation” has been sweeping through
the country. With the implementation of “Internet plus” action plan
and “Made in China 2025” proposal, economic development will
become more integrated, adding a fresh impetus to sustainable
development of China economy. In addition, China is playing a
more active and important role on various international (political
and economic) arenas, further demonstrating its international
influence. The “One Belt, One Road” policy was well-supported by
the participation of countries. The China-led Asian Infrastructure
Investment Bank (“AllB”) has finally been established and
proceeded to commence. Coupled with the inclusion of Renminbi in
the Special Drawing Right (“SDR”) Basket, they served as a strong
proof that the status of China in the international community has
been enhanced.

During the year, traditional department stores, being the core of the
retail business, faced unprecedented pressure, causing a tide of
store closures in regions like Beijing, Tianjin, Shandong and Anhui,
etc. Even giant retailers have incurred operating loss. The impact
upon the operation in the retail industry posed by the surge of
e-business gradually surfaced, not to mention the effect brought by
high rents, high wage and other rising costs. Against the backdrop
of a difficult operating environment, the Group nevertheless attained
satisfactory operating results.

In 2015, retail industry was generally operating under difficulties.
Despite the negative factors, the Group has made changes to
its operation and recorded a stable operating result. For the year
ended 31 December 2015, the Group has revenue of approximately
RMB839.7 million, representing a year-on-year increase of
approximately 2.2%. Gross profit was approximately RMB89.9
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
10.9%, and consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
Company was approximately RMB45.6 million, representing a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 22.3%. The decrease in
revenue was mainly attributable to the change of the usage of store
area and introduction of well-known concessionaires and catering
operators, which resulted in increased traffic flow and greater store
diversification, and accordingly, our concessionaire commission
and rental income had been shored up, partially offsetting impact of
the drop in sales.

During the year, the Group has continued renovation enhancement
to the stores. Approximately RMB 13 million has been spent
for store enhancement of Songgang store, bringing a fresh
shopping experience to consumers and creating a new shopping
environment. Besides, Shiyan store has also undergone
comprehensive renovation, followed by fine-tuning supermarket
display, optimizing sales mix and introducing kids apparel brands.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERTE(E)

On the other hand, various measures were implemented, sales
through mobile phone including activation of 020 mode and
strengthening of online and offline marketing channel, leveraging on
mobile internet technology. The Group kicked off its cross-border
e-business and implemented the “global shopping” concept for
our new generation by expanding its procurement team, recruiting
talents in online shopping, establishing network construction team,
organizing site-visit to overseas manufacturers and introducing
tax free overseas commodities. Thanks to the aforementioned,
Shenzhen’s first cross-border e-business shopping store was
unveiled in Shenzhen Longhua Store, characterized in its location
within the hypermarket in the community, easy for customer access
without taking long journey to the free trade zone or bonded
area and enjoy quality and best valued cross-border imported
commodities.

During the year, the Group fully applied its corporate visual design,
and went all-out for its logo enhancement to all sales levels in order
to enhance the Group’s brand recognition and attraction. The new
brand of “Baijiahua” (B =) represented maximum service, quality,
pleasure, vigor, energy, charm, symbolizing the new logo with the
“infinity” idea. The visual identity was realized in all of our stores
during the year which brought modern feeling to customers, laying
a solid foundation the Group’s further brand enhancement.

As to the administration, the Group has implemented a handful
of measures to maintain its operational efficiency and minimize
operating cost in relation to the human resources system.
Recruitments through various channels such as ‘head hunting’,
campus recruitment were held during the year, which enhanced the
quality and technical knowledge of our new staff for preparing new
business that may arise in future. As to the employee turnover, the
Group has set up an appraisal award system. Qualified employees
would be promoted. Different training seminars and examinations
would be held to reinforce employees’ personal sustainable
development and their sense of belonging to the Group.

As to the investment horizon, the Group has invested into various
non-retailing companies during the year. Firstly, the Group has
liaised investment cooperation with an internet operator based
in Changzhou, Jiangsu Province and acquired part of its equity
interests with a view to generate certain investment income from
the internet heat. Besides, we have entered into a franchise
agreement with an international cartoon brand name and acquired
the exclusive rights for operation and licensing of the business of
restaurants in Shenzhen and Guangzhou, China, which would be
a key step forward to the food and beverage retail segment. Last
but not least, the Group established a subsidiary focusing internet
technology. In addition to boosting the development of its retail
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)
BEERWME(E)

business, the Group also engaged in the development of smart
phone application software and the integrated sale and marketing
platform. Looking forward, our business will be more diversified as
the Group will continuously explore viable investment opportunities
by making good use of the resources raised from the Listing to
increase the return to shareholders.

It is anticipated that due to the slowdown in economic growth of
China, the growth in consumer market will continue to decline
in 2016. Throughout the 13" Five-year Plan period, supportive
policies unveiled by the Central Government were focused on the
development of well-being service industry and took the lead to
adopt new consumption pattern. With technological advancement
as well as the promotion of entrepreneurship and innovation across
the nation, internet related industry in 2016 will grow even faster
than 2015, boosting the development of e-commerce and overall
retail market. Generally, transformation and upgrading for traditional
retailers will be accelerated and penetrated further. There will be
various diversified trans-sector and featured operations, more
products of internet application, more mode of 020 marketing
and full scope retailing. Certain innovative ideas will be established
through the operation and will show a growing influence. Cross-
border e-commerce will maintain a rapid growth in 2016 while focus
will be put on online retailing of imported commodity with significant
growth potential.

The Directors believe that both opportunities and challenges await
ahead, and the retailing industry will compete and develop in a
much improved and better market environment.

In business development aspect, the Group will uphold the principle
of “consolidating resources and developing retail chain business”,
to strengthen the management, reiterate the competitive strength,
upgrade the brand image and expand in a stable manner. The
Group will focus on the development in areas such as Guangdong
and Guangxi by making use of different expansion models including
“acquisition, merging, investment holdings and joint venture”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
appreciation to all staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group, and would like to express my gratitude to all shareholders,
business partners, and valuable customers for their utmost support
to the Group.

Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

Shenzhen, the PRC
29 March 2016
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Executive Directors

Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun ($PE#), aged 55, is the founder, executive
Director and the chairman of the Group. He is responsible for the
overall management, strategic planning and major decision making
of the Group. Mr. Zhuang is the father of Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong.
Mr. Zhuang has over 20 years of experience in the retail industry.
He had served as a honorary deputy chairman of Shenzhen General
Chamber of Commerce (FYIT4EE), a standing committee
member of Shenzhen Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (YT B 1#), a member of the Shenzhen
Committee of the China National Democratic Construction
Association (FEBIREZBE ), a member of the China General
Chamber of Commerce (B %84 €), a deputy chairman of
Shenzhen Private Entrepreneur’s Chamber of Commerce (&Il
TREZMEEREE), a deputy chairman of Shenzhen Franchise
Association (FYITTEEHEITEWE), and a honorary chairman
of Shenzhen Baoan General Chamber of Commerce (FIJIE & &
#7E). Mr. Zhuang graduated from Guangdong Administrative
and Management College (ERTTEZFL) majoring in modern
management in July 1999, and obtained the Master of Business
Administration of senior management from the Sun Yat-sen
University (LUK E2). He also received the award of “Paragon
of Work” of Guangdong province (EBR & 4 EEEFER) in May
2003 and the award of Outstanding Staff Care Private Ownership
Entrepreneur (2BIFE E TEFREZEEFER) in September 2006.
He was elected as the Top Ten Person of the Year in Commerce
of Guangdong in 2007 and the Top Ten Creditable Entrepreneur in
the Integrated Retail Industry in China in the year 2007 and 2009
respectively, and the deputy chairman of the Hong Kong Volunteers
Federation in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has served the Group for over 21
years.

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong (351 &), aged 54, is an executive Director
and the chief financial officer of the Group. He is responsible for the
financial accounting and information system management of the
Group. Mr. Zhuang obtained an undergraduate diploma in financial
accounting from Guangdong Radio and Television University
(EREEEHRAE) in 1990 and pursued advanced studies in
management in Sun Yat-Sen University. Mr. Zhuang joined the
Group in August 1995 and has over 20 years of experience in the
retail industry. Mr. Zhuang was accredited senior membership of
the International Profession Certification Association (B R &
#% &) and membership of the China Association for Employment
Promotion (FEFL2/2# <€) in 2008 and has obtained a master
degree in business administration from the University of Wales in
England in 2014. Mr. Zhuang has served the Group for over 19
years.

Mr. Gu Wei Ming (BE#85), aged 47, is an executive Director
and the deputy general manager of the Group responsible for the
management of executive and office administration of the Group.
He joined the Group in August 1997 and has over 20 years of
experience in the retail industry. In 2014, Mr. Gu has obtained the
master degree in business administration from University of Tianjin
of China. Mr. Gu has served the Group for over 19 years.
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Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong (¥ /) #), aged 33. Mr. Zhuang obtained
from the University of Luton, United Kingdom a bachelor of arts
degree in business administration in 2005 and a master of science
degree in finance and business management in 2006. Mr. Zhuang is
the deputy chairman of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce
(Association of the Industrialists and Businessman) (% 3Il 71 42 7%
@ (LB )) and a committee member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Shenzhen (B 17 #3IlT £ 8
). Mr. Zhuang is the son of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang
Su Lan. He joined the Group as full time member in 2006 and is
responsible for the overall operation management of the Group. Mr.
Zhuang has served the Group for over 10 years.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung (§82%f), CPA (practising), FCMA, aged
58, is a practising accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chin is a fellow
member of the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants
and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has extensive experience in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Mr. Chin has served the Group for over
8 years.

Mr. Sun Ju Yi (&%), aged 63, graduated from the Finance and
Economic Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978 and underwent
a master research study program at the Finance and Economics
Institute of Tianjin in the PRC in 1978. He is a senior accountant
and a registered accountant in the PRC. He had been a lecturer
of the Finance and Economic Institute of Tianjin and the assistant
to the principal of Shenzhen Zhong Hua Accounting Firm. Mr. Sun
has over 30 years of experience in financial lecturing, accounting,
auditing and corporate financial management. Mr. Sun was an
independent non-executive director of Jinchuan Group International
Resources Co. Ltd (formerly known as Macau Investment Holdings
Limited) (SEHK: 02362). He is a director of Gemdale Corporation (&
1 £ E)) (600383.SH), a listed PRC nationwide property developer.
Mr. Sun has served the Group for 3 years.

Mr. Ai Ji (X&), aged 62, graduated from Hunan Radio and
Television University (4158 E# E R K E) with a bachelor’'s degree
in law and obtained the qualification of a practising lawyer in
1988. Mr. Ai is a practising lawyer in the PRC, has worked for
Hunan Chuhua Law Firm (87 % 2 £AE A1) and Guangdong
ShenTianCheng Law Firm (ER &KX ERIEAT), and is a senior
partner of the Yingke Law Firm (BEHZRIEHAT). He is a member
of the standing committee of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (Shenzhen)
(FREARBAHEEHAYTEZEE), a member of various
committees (including member of the sixth and seventh sessions
of standing committee of Guangdong, deputy chairman of legal
system committee, and deputy chairman of the fifth and sixth
sessions of Shenzhen committee) of the China Democratic National
Construction Association (AR EZE2). Mr. Ai practised as a
legal counsel and has accumulated over 37 years experience in
various commercial and law firms in the PRC. Mr. Ai has served the
Group for over 8 years.

Annual Report 2015

HAOEEE 3B RN _TETRAFER_
TERNFRRFEVABRERIFEENS
TEMUARIEREEERBELEA - ik
ERSRYTRBE(TE) g R &R
ARYTEEGEE - HELAREEREER
HEMRXEIZRT - WR_FTNFNER
SEXNAERESR - RERARENEREL
EEE - HALEEREERE THBETF -

BYHHITES

28854 - CPA (practising) * FCMA © 58
B BAZHESER o BAAR KBRS
EEEMAEERSERBALMNAE
28 FRE S RMBERIESRE
EREE - AACKREERE THBBN

-+ g o

BEBEHEILE 635 BR—NLE/\FEER
KIEBKERE  WR— Nt NFERPEEKE
ERELTHETAETRE RATESRE
TN K B e stel - B ARELE
BT s AN & P BRI ZE S AR ISP AT R B
oo RAEERBEER  25F - Bt o
PHEEIE ST HEBIBEI0FELR  RLELAS
JNEBRBRERER QA (A& ABFIKE
EIAE R AR (B AT 1 02362) 2B IEH
FTEE -BATPR I TERMERER S
(BB MHERAR(ERFAT :600383) 2%
FoRAELCHREBRRE T =F -

NREE 6258 0 — NN\ NFEERAEE
BERABIRSHIREMER - WELER
PRI R - BHEN L E R EN
NERAFRRKEMEGH - RABFHEME
BRESREBA - BRATEARBUAHE
ERANMEZEGRHBKLE  FERIZEE
CEREREF NLEZRE AHZES
BlEE - FImZeFORAEMEE - X
FERERER - BRPESEEE KR
TRBEEB=TLFLR - LEECREH
AR7E T HRB\ 5 -



Biography of Directors and Senior Management (Continued)
EENEEEEAESEE(E)

Mr. Li Dong (Z#%), aged 41, is the human resources manager
responsible for overall manpower management of the Group. Mr.
Li obtained a certificate of Business Administration from the Open
University of China in 2011. Mr. Li has served as store manager,
deputy manager of the human resources department, the chief
operation officer, the general manager of the Guangxi subsidiary
and the deputy manager of the procurement department. Mr. Li has
over 17 years of experience in the retail industry. Mr. Li has served
the Group for over 12 years.

Mr. Zhuang Ru Zhao (#7%8), aged 34, is the deputy manager of
the department store responsible for the operation and business
invitation management of the Group. Mr. Zhuang obtained the
certificate of Education Management and the master degree of
Business Administration from the South China Normal University
of China and University of Wales in England in 2005 and 2014
respectively. Mr. Zhuang joined the Group in 2005. He has worked
for the positions of office administration manager, senior executive
manager and chairman of labour union. Mr. Zhuang has served the
Group for over 11 years.

Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo (ff%#Fl), FCCA, CPA, ACIS, ACS, aged
42, is the finance manager and company secretary of the Group.
Mr. Ho obtained a degree of bachelor of Business Administration
(Honours) in Accounting from the Hong Kong Baptist University
in 1995 and a master degree in Corporate Governance from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2008. He is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. Mr. Ho has over 16 years of
experience in accounting, auditing and corporate finance. Mr. Ho
has served the Group for over 9 years.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE (&)

(A) Industry Overview (=) ITXEHE

Amid rapid reform and transformation in the retail sector FEZEEFRENINRE S R
in China, the economic restructuring has made the retail B G ARG EREETEHANE
sector the main channel to stimulate domestic demand and MERNEENTERE - BIAERAE
economy. Improvement in living standard and changes in ERKERS  UREREEBERE L
currency exchange rates led to shift in trend of consumption FEEBETRE - BT K NIZEBEH
and demand. As the government was proactively fostering MR SEREECERE  F2E
internet development, and encouraging online business, TEBEBERNE MKE -

operators in the retail sector were subject to significant
reform and had to deal with many challenges.

EEFEERERAT —=-nsen 15
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According to the statistics released by the National Bureau
of Statistics of China, GDP for the year amounted to
RMB67,600 billion, representing a 6.9% increase over
last year. Total retail sales of social consumer goods for
the year was RMB30,000 billion, representing an year-on-
year (“YOY”) growth of 10.7%. Among them, retail sales
of “over-the-threshold” consumer goods grew by 7.8% on
an YOY basis to RMB14,200 billion. Retail sales of urban
consumer goods rose by 10.5% to RMB25,900 billion
YQOY. By consumption pattern, retail sales of commodities
went up 10.6% to RMB26,900 billion YOY. During the year,
total domestic online retail sales amounted to RMB3,800
billion, representing an YOY growth of 33.3%. Among them,
physical goods online retail sales grew by 31.6% on an
YQOY basis to RMB3,200 billion, accounting for 10.8% of
the total retail sales of social consumer goods. Online retail
sales of non-physical goods amounted to RMB630 billion,
up by 42.4%. The annual per capita income amounted to
RMB22,000. On further break down, per capita disposable
income of urban residents amounted to RMB31,000,
increased by 8.2% as compared with last year; per
capita disposable income of rural residents amounted to
RMB11,000, increased by 8.9% as compared with last year.

The retail market in China is plagued with slow recovery
in consumption and fierce competition among various
channels. As such, retail store operators are going through
a rough patch and lacking growth momentum in their
fundamental aspects. It remains highly uncertain whether
they can turn things around.

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited Annual Report 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
EEENRE D (E)

During the year, the Group has directly operated 11 stores
with a total gross floor area of approximately 149,000 square
meters, principally located in the Guangdong (including
Shenzhen and Foshan) and Guangxi provinces. Among
them, ten stores (total gross floor area of approximately
146,000 square meters) are operating as retail stores and
one is used for leasing purpose. For the ten retail stores,
eight of them are in Guangdong (seven in Shenzhen and one
in Foshan) and the remaining two are in Nanning of Guangxi.
The Group also owns a four-floor commercial property
located in Baoan Central District, Shenzhen, Guangdong.
Except for part of one floor being used as the Group’s own
headquarters, all other commercial floors have been fully
leased out for rental purpose.

Store upgrade and renovation to create a delicate
shopping environment

During the year, two flagship stores underwent intensive
renovation to enhance their presentation in order to create
a delicate shopping environment. Songgang store was the
main subject, the renovation to which involved an overhaul
of its outer wall and installation of a large display screen at
its entrance roof. It served to promote and deliver the store’s
message of innovative and interactive to its customers.
The store offered a refreshing layout and decoration with
enhanced lighting effects and tiles replacement for the sales
floor. Other improvements included revamped panoramic lift
to provide three types of in-store customer transportation,
auxiliary facilities upgrade and compressed supermarket
area to make space for a catering project. Famous enjoyable
lifestyle brands and operators were introduced to the store
and product mix was optimised, which would provide a
comfortable and delicate shopping environment for the
consumers. Shiyan store also optimised its layout and
products structure and improved its internal environment
and facilities. The store also brought in well known kids
apparel vendors to foster an atmosphere of community
store.
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Introducing corporate visual design to transmit
corporate business objective

In order to enhance recognition and attractiveness of our
brand, the Group formulated a corporate visual design
during the year. We conducted comprehensive logo-
upgrading work and applied the logos in our sales floor. The
new “Baijiahua” logo promoted the idea of “full service, full
quality, and full happiness”, which represents our energy,
vigour and charm to go beyond limit. The new logo not only
establishes a new outlook of the Group’s retail business for
customers, but also transmits the management’s operating
concepts regarding the Group’s future development.
During the year, the Group applied such visual identity in all
sales outlets so as to provide customers with a brand new
experience as well as to lay a solid foundation for further
upgrade of the brand in the future.

Carry out state-supported projects to commence
cross-border e-commerce business

In recent years, demand for imported goods in China has
been surging. In response to the emerging of this new
sales opportunities, the Group started preparation works
in the mid of the year and re-engineered the information
system for the new business. The activation of 020 model
allowed for a full utilisation of mobile internet technology,
enhanced synergistic marketing between online and offline
channels and a trial run for the cross-border e-commerce.
Accordingly, the Group expanded its procurement
department and recruited talents for online shopping so as
to establish an online development team, which would be
responsible for identifying overseas suppliers, acquiring tax-
free commodities from abroad and implementing the new
concept of “shopping around the world”. In October, the
Group set up the first conceptual cross-border e-commerce
store in our Longhua store in Shenzhen to assist the
cross border business. The Group expects to obtain a
considerable share in the new retail market segment.

Annual Report 2015
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Widen investment horizon to expand scope of
business

Since last year, the Group kept searching for new investment
projects to add into existing portfolio in addition to purchase
of commercial properties for rental purposes, investment
in consumable wholesaler and acquisition of equity interest
in enterprises engaged in mobile internet platform. In this
regard, the Group commenced investment cooperation
with an internet service platform operator headquartered
in Changzhou, Jiangsu Province and acquired part of its
equity interest, which may generate investment return
due to increasing attractiveness of the electronic industry.
Furthermore, in February, the Group entered into another
cooperation agreement with an international cartoon brand
licensor for an exclusive operating right and franchise
licensing right of the brand’s catering services in Shenzhen
and Guangzhou, the PRC. The Group had identified several
locations for the operation of theme restaurants and
cafes, marking an important step for entering into catering
business. At the end of the year, the Group incorporated
a subsidiary focusing on internet technology, which will
complement the development of the Group’s retail business
by developing mobile phone application platform, and work
on the distribution and marketing area. As the business
scope continues to diversify, the Group will continue to
identify feasible investment opportunities and take full
advantage of the resources obtained from listing to boost the
return for the shareholders.

Looking forward to 2016, the retail sector will still face the
challenge from greater pressure of accelerating cost and
competition from e-business. Although traditional retailers
will still dominate the market, profit margin is likely to
decrease with the vicious competition and the influence of
e-business. Despite this situation, the Group will carefully
guide the transformation towards the sales-driven model
and strengthen the operating management to further its
profitability so as to cope with the impact brought about
by the e-business to traditional retail operation. Apart from
this, all stores will undergo upgrade renovation to give new
shopping experience to customers. Information platform
building will uplift customer profile and satisfaction, hence
preserve their confidence on the Group’s business. On
the investment front, the Group will continue to seek other
appropriate opportunities to broaden its operating scope
and increase the shareholders’ return.

RAREEE - HNEKER

SEEBEFRATHSHRHIKRER
B BREREVEIESHESWA
REZFRERILER  2BRBEHEHT
BEEIN FAMRNZEER - &
b EEER-FKAHRNIEHE T
NHHBERBFEREBRAKRE
BfF - BARMDERE  BHEETFT
EEE TR —RRERS - B
SER-ANR-KEERENEREE
REERAERZE - RS ZmERT
BURYI K B P 3 B R TS 2 TR A
ERMBEDHE  KECYES A
HEERENTIBEERREE  RE
BETHTEEN—H  -REKR - &
BE AR T —REFT R A Z /B
NEBEAEBEZTERRZER
S BERFHRERFERERIHEK
BHTHAER RERAXEBEERRE
mET  SRESEEMERTZR
EHE  ROMNBLHEEZER
SEINEA R 2 B o

RE2016%F  TEERAEBRMK RN
BEERLEFFESHFAE R
NEBEREMBOCAINTE - #A
EBRTEXDAMENIEMSER
E BRZRAXTURFREFES
HEEZIERE  FBEKFEAEMT
[ o BEWIL - KREUDSIUFIAHEE
RERNEL T - REEEEIN
E—FRBAMNKY  BREHET
BEHERENETE - RS - KEE
BETHRFPTAME - URIRFAERZ
Bk wESSzER B
BEZEELWEE  UWREBEEZ
B0 - ERENH  SESRERS
AEsEMREKS  BEAKLLRH
S BINRR 2 MK -

—F-REER



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2015, total revenue of the
Group (that is, the aggregate proceeds from direct sales of goods,
commission from concessionaire sales, rental income from sub-
leasing of shop premises, rental income from investment properties,
wholesale of consumables and interest income from factoring
service) was approximately RMB839.7 million, representing an
increase of 2.2% from approximately RMB821.2 million in 2014.

Affected by the emerging and fast growing of internet e-shopping
operators, the Group has undergone conversion of part of
sales floor from direct sales to leasing to food and beverage
concessionaire counter to increase the attractiveness of stores to
customers. Total direct sales of goods declined by approximately
7.9% to approximately RMB578.7 million for the year of 2015.
Gross margin was approximately 14.9% for the year of 2015, which
was slightly lower than the sales margin of approximately 15.8% for
the year of 2014.

Commission from concessionaire sales, however, increased by
approximately 0.8% to approximately RMB115.0 million for the year
of 2015. The increase was mainly due to increase of sales floor for
concessionaire counters, principally food and beverage operators.
This resulted in the increase of rental income from sub-leasing of
store premises amounted to approximately RMB45.3 million for
the year, an increase of 11.1% compared on yearly basis. For the
wholesale of consumables, there was considerable performance
with approximately RMB91.0 million with aggressive strategy of low
margin by the Group. Rental income from investment properties
increased by approximately 6.5% to approximately RMB9.0 million
for the year. The increase was mainly due to full occupancy of the
properties in Jiahua Ming Yuan which earned rental income. There
was a new business commenced by a subsidiary of the Group to
carry on factoring service amounting to approximately RMBO0.6
million during the year.

Other operating income

Other operating income of the Group, comprised mainly of interest
income, government grants administration and management fee
income from suppliers and miscellaneous income, amounted to
approximately RMB66.2 million in 2015, representing a decrease
of 11.7% from RMB74.9 million in the year of 2014. This was
attributable to the decrease in interest rate on bank deposits and
loss of side business income from direct sales of goods.
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Cost of inventories sold

Cost of inventories sold represent the sales of goods and wholesale
of consumables. In line with the decline of direct sales of goods,
the Group’s cost of inventories sold declined to approximately
RMB492.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2015,
representing a decrease of approximately 7.0% from approximately
RMB529.4 million in the year of 2014. Cost of inventories sold for
wholesale of consumables increased from approximately RMB27.6
million in 2014 to approximately RMB87.3 million in 2015, up by
216.1% which coincide with the increase in revenue from wholesale
of consumables during the year.

Increase in fair value of investment properties

Increase in fair value of investment properties decreased from
approximately RMB7.0 million for the year ended 31 December
2014, to approximately RMB3.1 million for this year, representing a
decrease of approximately 55.7% due to changing condition in real
estate market.

Staff costs

The Group’s staff costs decreased by 0.6% from approximately
RMB87.3 million in 2014 to approximately RMB86.8 million in 2015.
The decrease was mainly due to the streamlining of manpower
resource of the Group.

Depreciation

The Group’s depreciation decreased by 10.6% from RMB31.0
million in 2014 to approximately RMB27.7 million in 2015. The drop
was primarily due to full amortisation of part of the fixed assets
acquired in the early years. Depreciation as a percentage of total
revenue of the Group decreased from 3.8% in 2014 to 3.3% in
2015.

Other operating expenses

Other operating expenses decreased mainly due to absence
of compensation payment to landlord for early termination of
Shatoujiao store last year.

Share of loss of an associate

The share of loss of an associate for year ended 31 December
2015 amounted to approximately RMB1.5 million representing the
Group’s share of results of its equity interests in Shenzhen Egoos
Mobile Internet Limited acquired last year.

Finance cost

For the year ended 31 December 2015, finance cost of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB13,000, representing a decrease
of 98.9% from approximately RMB1.2 million in 2014 due to the full
repayment of loan at the beginning of the year.
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Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense slightly increased by 1.6% from
approximately RMB18.1 million in 2014 to approximately RMB18.4
million in 2015 as there was additional provision of withholding tax
of the Group.

Profit for the year

As a result of the reasons mentioned above, profit for the year
ended 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately RMB45.6
million, representing a decrease of 22.3% from approximately
RMBS58.7 million in 2014.

The Group maintains a stable financial position. As at 31 December
2015, the Group had cash and bank balances of approximately
RMB293.3 million (2014: approximately RMB321.7 million). During
the year, the Group did not use any financial instruments for any
hedging purpose.

There was no bank borrowing — secured as at 31 December 2015
(2014: approximately RMB100.0 million).

The Group’s net current assets as at 31 December 2015 was
approximately RMB164.7 million, a decrease of 14.1% from the
balance of approximately RMB191.6 million recorded as at 31
December 2014.

Net assets slightly up to approximately RMB563.9 million,

representing an increase of approximately RMB24.7 million or 4.6%
over the balance as at 31 December 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

REVENUE - TURNOVER
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Risk Management

The activities of the Group expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including foreign exchange risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk.

(i) Foreign currency risk
The Group has operation in the PRC so that the majority
of the Group’s revenues, expenses and cash flows are
denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities of the Group
are mostly denominated in RMB and HK$. Any significant
exchange rate fluctuations of foreign currencies against RMB
may have financial impact to the Group.

(i) Credit risk
The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.
Most of the sales transactions were settled in cash basis or
by credit card payment. The carrying amount of trade and
other receivables included in the consolidated statement of
financial position represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

(iii)  Interest rate risk
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly arises on
cash and bank balances and bank borrowing-secured. The
Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge its
exposure to interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated
a policy to manage the interest rate risk.

(iv)  Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash and bank
balances and have available funding to meet its working
capital requirements. The Group’s liquidity is dependent
upon the cash received from its customers. The directors of
the Company are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet
in full its financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

Employees And Remuneration Policy

For the year ended December 2015, the Group had 1,425 full
time employees in average in the mainland China and Hong
Kong. The Group continues to recruit high calibre individuals
and provide continuing education and training for employees to
help upgrading their skills and knowledge as well as developing
team spirit on an on-going basis. During the year, total staff costs
were approximately RMB86.8 million. Competitive remuneration
packages are structured to commensurate with reference
to individual responsibilities, qualification, experience and
performance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 December 2015, the Group has no significant contingent
liabilities.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2015, capital expenditures
of the Group for property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB51.3 million (2014: approximately RMB28.1
million).

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had capital commitments
contracted, but not provided for, amounting to approximately
RMB4.2 million (2014: approximately RMB11.5 million).

Subsequent Events
The Group did not have any other significant subsequent events
subsequent to 31 December 2015.
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R-ZZB—HF+ZA=+—H ' ' rx&ELE
BEAHAEE -

BEXREX
BE-_T—HAF+-_A=+—HItFE " &
SEBYE  BEAIENERARAIHNAA
R#51,313,000c(—E— M4 : HARE
28,133,0007T) °

BREE

N-ZB—AE+-A=+—8 ' x&E/ELTH
BRBHENEAREEL B ARE4,170,0007T
(ZZ—F - HARE11,461,0000T) ©

HEBHRER
AEER-_Z-—RAF+ _A=+—HELE
ETEMEMEANEERLREE -

Gross  Average of daily Average of daily
floor area transactions transactions

Commence (sq.m.) (Supermarket)  (Department store)  Estimated no. of

operation  Storey EEME HBHTHRZHBE SHTLHRZHE  visitors per day

Retail stores MREERE BE (5K (Em) (BE) fh S HEESA
FY15 FY14 FY15 FY14 FY15 FY14
2015%  2014F 2015%  2014F 20155 2014
Xixiang piik i 1/10/1997 3 8,806 5,085 5,568 58 99 7,457 8,217
Shajing W 1/5/1999 5 20,978 3,820 4,540 915 937 6,392 7,393
Songgang N 1/1/2001 D 03x134 5,549 6,524 1,113 1,252 9,660 11,274
Longhua BEE 1/11/2001 5 24,549 2,569 3,602 1,456 1,534 5,434 6,933
Gongming N 1/9/2002 4 21,843 6,959 7,320 1,423 1,310 11,316 11,651
Shiyan hE 1/1/2007 1 5,852 5,526 5,905 812 847 7,922 8,440
Yanbu 7 1/1/2008 2 7,987 2,435 2,791 104 146 3,682 4,259
Dashatian RO H 1/1/2009 3 8,500 2,881 3,346 213 269 4,269 4,989
Sanlian =B 5/12/2009 4 9,600 2,337 2,849 - - 2,923 3,561
Taoyuan PR 30/12/2009 4 14,493 2,817 3,082 273 301 3,862 4,229
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Gross proceeds
per operation area

Gross proceeds per day Average value
Gross proceeds per day SHLEER per transaction
FRERERRE SRMBNEAHE S RERE BRRZVHE
(RMB million) (RMB thousand) (RMB) (RMB)
Retail stores (AR¥EET) (ARBTT) (AR%T) (AR%7)
FY15 FY14 FY15 FY14 FY15 Fy14 FY15 FY14
20155  2014%  2015%F  2014F  2015%F  2014F  2015%  2014%
Xixiang Fash 81.7 84.0 224.0 230.2 28.0 28.8 47.0 441
Shajing W 227.2 239.7 622.7 656.8 31.3 33.0 135.9 124.2
Songgang NG 315.0 339.1 863.2 929.2 45.1 48.6 132.7 122.7
Longhua B 341.0 336.0 934.2 920.7 44.7 44.0 232.1 181.7
Gongming ~H 414.6 3836 1,136.1  1,051.1 58.0 53.7 139.8 126.8
Shiyan yaka 292.3 2814 801.0 771.2 170.5 164.1 132.7 120.1
Yanbu B 35.8 40.6 98.1 111.4 16.4 18.6 38.7 38.9
Dashatian AP H 69.3 78.6 189.9 216.4 40.6 46.1 61.9 60.4
Sanlian — 25.8 28.9 70.7 79.3 11.2 12.6 29.6 24.0
Taoyuan 953 74.3 79.6 203.7 218.2 20.7 22.2 65.4 65.1
Notes: B E

The above-mentioned are unaudited figures and based on internal records.
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TEERRE

The Group fully acknowledges its obligations to its shareholders and
investors. For the year ended 31 December 2015, the Company
has been in strict compliance with the applicable legal and
regulatory requirements of domestic or foreign securities regulatory
authorities and has been devoted to improving the transparency of
its corporate governance and the quality of information disclosure.
The Group also attaches great importance on communication with
its shareholders and strives to ensure the timeliness, completeness
and accuracy of its information disclosure to its shareholders and
investors and to the protection the interests of investors. The Board
has strictly complied with the principles of corporate governance
and is dedicated to improving the management quality of the
Company and the standard of corporate governance continually in
order to protect and enhance value for shareholders. To this end,
the Company adopted the principles in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
with the aim of enhancing the quality of corporate governance of
the Group. Such adoption was reflected in the Company’s Articles
of Association, internal rules and regulations and the corporate
governance implementation practices.

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code for the
year ended 31 December 2015 as contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules, except for the following deviations:

Code provision E.1.2 of the Code requires that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Zhuang Lu
Kun, the Chairman of the Board was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 28 May 2015 due to his
other business engagements.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Board consists of seven Directors, of whom four are executive
Directors including the chairman of the Board and three of whom
are Independent Non-executive Directors. Profiles and particulars
of the chairman of the Company and other Directors are set out
under the section headed “Biography of Directors and Senior
Management”. The term of service of each Director (including
Independent Non-executive Directors) is three years (two years
for Independent Non-executive Directors). Corresponding to the
term of service, all executive Directors have entered into service
contracts, which are valid for a term of 3 years (two years for
Independent Non-executive Directors) and renewable subject
to the applicable laws. The names of Directors referred herein
are members of the ninth session of the Board. The principal
responsibilities of the Board include:

- to formulate overall strategies, monitor operating and
financial performance and determine proper policies to
manage risks exposures arising in the course of achieving
the Group’s strategic goals;

- to oversee and review the Company’s internal control
system;

- to be ultimately responsible for the preparation of financial
statements of the Company and to assess the Company’s
performance, financial position and prospects in a balanced,
clear and comprehensible way in respect of the interim
and annual reports of the Company, other price-sensitive
announcements and disclosure of financial information
pursuant to the Listing Rules, reports submitted to the
regulatory authorities and information disclosure pursuant to
legal requirements;

- the executive Directors/management in charge of various
aspects of the operations of the Company are responsible
for the management of daily operations of the Company.
The Board is responsible for setting and handling policies,
financial and formulating affairs affecting the overall
strategy of the Company, including financial statements,
dividends policy, material changes to accounting policies,
annual operating budget, material contracts, key finance
arrangements, major investments and risk management
policies;

- the management has received clear guidelines and
instructions in respect of their authorities, especially under
all circumstances to report to the Board and to seek Board’s
approval prior to making any decision or entering into any
commitment on behalf of the Company; and
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERBRE (B)

- to review the responsibilities and authorities delegated to the
executive Directors/management on a regular basis and to
ensure such arrangements are appropriate.

The members of the Board fully acknowledge their own duties
and obligations in treating all shareholders on an equal basis and
protecting the interests of all investors. The Company ensures that
documents and information relating to the businesses of the Group
are provided to Board members on a timely basis. The Independent
Non-executive Directors perform their duties in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations and safeguard the interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The Company
has received confirmation letters from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Director in respect of their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at least
one-third of the Directors shall retire by rotation at the annual
general meeting and all newly appointed Directors will have to retire
at the next annual general meeting. The retiring Directors are eligible
to offer themselves for re-election.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met periodically to review
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 2 July
2014 and discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing
the policy. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board with a view to enhancing its effectiveness and
achieving a high standard of corporate governance. It endeavours to
ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise),
talents, skills, knowledge, length of service and other qualities of
Directors. The ultimate decision of all Board appointments should be
based on meritocracy and the likely contributions that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Nomination Committee has
reviewed such board diversity policy in the Year.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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Continuous Professional Development BFEEELRR

The individual training confirmation of each director received forthe ZAAR BRI BGRNESENEE_ET—HF
year ended 31 December 2015 is summarized below:— T AT —BUEFEZFIERE - EHE

R - —

Attending seminar(s)
relevant to business
or directors’ duties

and responsibilities

HEEERR
Reading Materials EZREHEE
Directors MEEH ZHeg
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun TR v v
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong HmATE v v/
Mr. Gu Wei Ming BERLLE v 4
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong NSRS v v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEBTES
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BIELE v v
Mr. Sun Ju Yi RERELE v 4
Mr. Ai Ji N krs v 4
COMMITTEES ZE9

The monitoring and assessment of certain governance matters are & T &2 /8 FEMWER Rl E TIED Bl H =&
allocated to three committees which operate under written terms of B BEMBEHENZE 2T - BEX
reference. The composition of the committees up to the date of this F¥RARLEZEZEFHNKENT ¢

report is set out in the table below:

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Committee Committee Committee
Directors ERZEE FMZEES REZE"
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (Chairman) HERLE(EER) = = =
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong AL E - Member % 8 =
Mr. Gu Wei Ming BEfREE - - Member X &
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong /R E - = =
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung IR Chairman £ & Member X 8 Member i 8
Mr. Sun Ju Vi BREERE Member B8  Chairman =& Member 5% 8
Mr. Ai Ji N REE Member B & Member B8  Chairman X%
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The Company has established an audit committee on 30 April
2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Listing
Rules. The audit committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors who together have substantial experience in
the fields of accounting, business, legal, corporate governance and
regulatory affairs. The audit committee is responsible for reviewing
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Company
as well as substantial exceptional items, internal controls and
financial reporting matters, which included a review on the audited
annual results for the year ended 31 December 2015.

In addition, the audit committee also monitors the appointment of
the Company’s external auditor.

The Company has established a remuneration committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director.
The primary duties of the remuneration committee are to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other
compensation payable to Directors and senior management. In
addition, it has responsibility for reviewing and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of all the Directors and senior management.

The Company has established a nomination committee on 30
April 2007 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Listing Rules. The nomination committee comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director.
The nomination committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors and
management of Board succession. The responsibilities of the
nomination committee are to determine the criteria for identifying
candidates suitably qualified and reviewing nominations for the
appointment of Directors to the Board.
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Attendance record of the Directors (including attendance by proxy)
is as follows:

Board
meetings
Exg
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun ERESR S 6/7
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong EmakE 1
Mr. Gu Wei Ming BERLE 6/7
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong R 417
Independent Non-Executive BI##HT78%
Directors
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung Bl LE 57
Mr. Sun Ju i BEsks 41
Mr. Al Ji LREE 5/

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ho Yuet Lee, Leo, is
a full time employee of the Company. During the year, he has taken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors hereby confirm their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company. The Directors confirm that the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company complied
with the relevant laws and accounting standards and that the
Company would publish the financial statements of the Company at
the appropriate time. The responsibilities of external auditor to the
shareholders are set out on pages 54 to 55.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS
OF LISTED ISSUERS IN APPENDIX 10 OF THE
LISTING RULES

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions of the
Directors of the Company. After specific enquiries to the Directors,
the Board is pleased to confirm that all the Directors have fully
complied with the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules during the year under review.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment
of external auditor and reviewing their remuneration. For the year, fee
paid of approximately RMB992,000 was incurred by the Company
to the external auditor as service charge for its audit service of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2015.

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board is committed to implement an effective and sound internal
controls system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the
Group’s assets. The Board has delegated to the management the
implementation of the system of internal controls and reviewed
of all relevant financial, operational, compliance controls and risk
management function within an established framework.

The Group has established an organizational structure, which sets
out the relevant operating policies and procedures, duties and
authorizations.

Executive directors and senior management have been delegated
the relevant authorizations in respect of corporate strategies,
policies and contracting liabilities. Budget controls and financial
reporting systems are formulated by relevant departments and are
subject to review by directors in charge. The Group has formulated
relevant procedures to assess, review and approve significant
capital and recurrent expenses, while operating results will be
compared against the budgets and reported to executive directors
on a regular basis.

Directors and senior managements participate in internal control
training programmes provided by the Group, which are designed
to equip them with proper and full knowledge on internal controls,
and provide guidance to them to apply internal control systems on
a consistent basis.
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The Group has put in place a comprehensive accounting
management system, so as to provide the management with
indicators to evaluate its financial and operating performance and
financial information for reporting and disclosure purposes. Any
deviation from expectation will be analysed and explained, and
appropriate steps will be carried out to address issues where
necessary. The Group has set up appropriate internal control
procedures to ensure full, proper and timely record of accounting
and management information, which will be reviewed and
inspected on a regular basis to ensure the financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, accounting policies of the Group and applicable laws and
regulations.

During the relevant year, there are no uncertain events or conditions
that may materially affect the continuing operation of Group on an
ongoing concern.

The Company reports to the shareholders regarding corporate
information of the Group on a timely and accurate basis. Printed
copies of the 2015 interim report have been sent to all shareholders.
The Company places great emphasis on communication with
shareholders and investors of the Company and improving the
Company’s transparency of information disclosure. As such,
designated officers are assigned to handle relations with investors
and analysts. The Company made disclosures in a faithful, true,
accurate, complete and timely manner in strict accordance with the
applicable laws and regulations, Articles of Association and Listing
Rules. At the same time, the Company places great importance in
collecting and analyzing various comments and recommendations
of analysts and investors on the Company’s operations, which
would be compiled into reports regularly and adopted selectively
in its operations. The Company has set up a website, allowing
investors to access updates on the Company’s particulars,
statutory announcements, management and recent operating
affairs. All published annual reports, interim reports, circulars
and announcements since the Listing are and will be included in
the “Investors Relations” section of the website. The Company
persistently adheres to its disclosure principle of honesty and
integrity and actively initiates communications with various parties.
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To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting. Besides, pursuant to the
Articles of Association, shareholder(s) holding not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings may request the Company to convene an
extraordinary general meeting by sending a written requisition to the
Board or the Company Secretary. The objects of the meeting must
be stated in the written requisition.

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for
putting forward any enquiries or proposals to the Board of the
Company. Contact details are as follows:

Address: Suite 715, Ocean Centre, 5 Canton Road,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Investor Relations
Department)

Fax: 852-36203100

Email: zZpz@szbjh.com

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required
by law.

During the year, the Company did not make any changes to its
Articles of Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of
Association is available on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website. Shareholders may refer to the Articles of
Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be
voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll voting
results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.szbjh.com)
immediately after the relevant general meetings.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details
of the principal activities of each member of the Company are set
out in note 35 to the financial statements. The principal activities of
the operating subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2015 are operation and management of retail stores,
wholesale of consumables and provision of factoring services in the
PRC.

The results of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2015
are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 56.

The Board of Directors propose the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2015 of RMB1.27 cents per ordinary
share.

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, it is expected that the payment of final dividend
will be made on or before Friday, 24 June 2016.

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in consolidated statement
of changes in equity and note 29 to the financial statements
respectively.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the movements
in the share options are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgHRE(E)

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s distributable reserves
amounted to approximately RMB254.1 million.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Associations of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing shareholders.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed or cancelled any of the Company’s
listed shares.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun

Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong
Mr. Gu Wei Ming

Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong

(Chairman)
(Chief Financial Officer)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung

Mr. Sun Ju Yi

Mr. Ai Ji

Pursuant to Article 87(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong and Mr. Gu
Wei Ming shall retire from office at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting by rotation. All retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election. The re-election of Directors will be
individually voted by Shareholders.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange. The Company considers that
all of the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.
All of the Independent Non-executive Directors are members
of the Company’s audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

The biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 11 to 13.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years (two years
for Independent Non-executive Directors) unless terminated by
not less than three months’ (two months’ for Independent Non-
executive Directors) written notice of termination served by either
the Director or the Company. Each of the service contracts further
provides that during the term of the service contract and within two
years upon the termination of service, the Executive Director cannot
engage in any business which is competing or is likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Company.
The appointments are subject to the provisions of retirement
and rotation of Directors under the Articles of Association of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into
any service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
(excluding contracts expiring or determinable by the employer
within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation)). The Company’s policies concerning
remuneration of the Executive Directors are as follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is determined on a case by
case basis depending on the relevant Director’s experience,
responsibility, workload and the time devoted to the Group;

(if) non-cash benefits may be provided at the discretion of the
Board to the relevant Directors under their remuneration
package; and

(i) the Executive Directors may be granted, at the discretion

of the Board, the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgHRE(E)

“

Save as disclosed in section under “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report on pages 44 to 50, no Director nor
controlling shareholders had a material interest, either directly
or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of
the Company. There is no contract of significance between the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or its
controlling shareholder during the year.

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to a resolution of the sole shareholder of the
Company passed on 30 April 2007. The Share Option Scheme
complies with the requirements of the Listing Rules. Certain share
options have been granted to the Directors and the employees of
the Company under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption
and up to 31 December 2015. Details of the outstanding options
as at the reporting date are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements.

As at the date of this annual report, the number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted under the Share Option Scheme
adopted by the Company and remained outstanding under the
Scheme was 73,334 shares, representing approximately 0.01% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

The scheme will be expired next year.

Regarding the values of options as disclosed in this report, it is
warned that due to subjectivity and uncertainty of the values of
options, such values are subject to a number of assumptions and
the limitation of the model.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which (a) were required notification to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which any such Director
and chief executives is taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO); or which (b) were required pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered into the register maintained by
the Company; or which (c) were required, pursuant to Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
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(@ Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company (a) ZAATSKREE0.OIETZZER
Number of shares/Underlying Shares Held
FrisiR 13, HBERGEHE
Percentage
of Issued
Personal Family Total Shares
Capacity Interest Interest Interest HE BT
55 PN 5 EY 3 £ HmEE ROBIHL
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (Mr. Zhuang) Beneficial 617,985,000 67,500,000 685,485,000 66.07%
SR s S A (R A Owner (Note 1)
BEREBA (M$5E1)
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong Beneficial 75,000,000 - 75,000,000 7.23%
SN A Owner
EmBEEA
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung Beneficial 36,666 = = =
IR & Owner (Note 2)
ERERA (Mizx2)
Mr. Ai Ji Beneficial 36,666 = = =
YRkt Owner (Note 3)
EREAA (HE3)
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING

SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(a) Ordinary Shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) 67,500,000 Shares are held by Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan (“Mrs. Zhuang”).
Since Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mr.
Zhuang is deemed to be interested in the said Shares held by Mrs.
Zhuang.

2) Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, Share Option in relation to
36,666 Shares were granted to Mr. Chin Kam Cheung.

(3) Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, Share Option in relation to

36,666 Shares were granted to Mr. Ai Ji.

All the interests disclosed above represent long position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
%Eﬁiﬁi IIE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)
(b) Share Options

Options to subscribe for Shares

Outstanding

EEFRSTHA
mﬁﬁlWﬁ
PR RAE @)

(b) BiR#E
TRBR G 2 R

%%
XA
i 2
i )
[

BRA
1H B3 A% £2

options Number Number Number Outstanding

atthe  ofoptions  of options  of options
beginning granted  exercised lapsed
of the year during during during

Name/Category of REA the year the year the year
Participants AT ERRY  FRTEZ  EREANZ
SEALHE/EH ZERE BREHE BREHE BREYE

Directors

g%

Mr. Chin Kam Cheung 36,066 = i =
ERELE

Mr. Al Ji 36,666 - - -
KU %

Save as disclosed above, none of the Company’s Directors,
chief executive and their associates, had any interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any Director or their respective
spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors, their respective spouses or
minor children to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
EEERE(E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY
AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2015, according to the register kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, and so far as
was known to any Director, the following persons (other than the
interests of certain Directors disclosed under the section headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short Positions in
Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company or any
associated Corporation” above), had an interest or short position in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

RIZB—HF+-A=+—8  BRARF
RIFEF LG GPIEI36GFE 2 ELM
iR RBEFEHAE REXTEZERF
BITBABRARE R EBREB RN - 48
R R EEENER MAR | B PTRE
ETESEZERIN  THALTRARRBRND
RRBEBRO T BERBESFMPEGIE
XVEPESE2 M3 BRI R A AR B TR 2 2
KA

Personal/ Percentage
corporate of issued
Type of interest Family share capital
interest Capacity BA interest Total {HERITRA
EZEE 55 AnER RikfER At AZk
Mrs. Zhuang  Personal Beneficial owner 67,500,000 617,985,000 685,485,000 66.07%
AR EAED BERBEAA (Note 1)
(BRFEET)
Notes: Bt
(1) 617,985,000 Shares are held by Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun (“Mr. Zhuang”). Since Mr. 1) 617,985,000 B A% 17y & B 0 4 A ([ 5564 )

Zhuang is the spouse of Mrs. Zhuang, under the SFO, Mrs. Zhuang is deemed
to be interested in the said Shares held by Mr. Zhuang.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other person known to the
Directors, other than the Directors, who, as at 31 December 2015,
had an interest or a short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEGHRE(E)

The Company has entered into the following non-exempt continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules,
which the Stock Exchange has granted waivers to, but subject to
the disclosure in the annual report under Rule 14A.49 of the Listing
Rules.

1. Lease of three store premises
FYITEEEEEEGR AR (Shenzhen Baijiahua Group
Company Limited) (“BJH Group”) is owned as to 90% by
Mr. Zhuang and 10% by Mrs. Zhuang. BJH Group is thus an
associate of Mr. Zhuang and therefore a connected person
of the Company. The Group leased three store premises,
details of which are set out as follows:

(i) Lease of store premises for the Longhua Store
Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 5 April 2005
(“Longhua Store Lease Agreement”) between BJH
Group (as landlord) and BJH Department Stores (as
tenant), BJH Department Stores leases the store
premises situated at Levels 1 to 5, Jiahua Emporium,
No. 291 Renmin Bei Road, Longhua Street, Baoan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC
with a gross floor area of approximately 24,549.25
square metres for a term of 15 years commencing
from 1 March 2004 and expiring on 28 February
2019 at a monthly rent of RMB490,985 with
triennial increase of 5% starting from 1 March 2008.
Pursuant to a supplemental lease agreement dated
18 November 2006 between BJH Group and BJH
Department Stores, the parties agreed that if the
Company cannot meet the requirements in respect
of continuing connected transactions (including but
not limited to obtaining approval by independent
shareholders), BJH Department Stores has the right
to terminate the transactions without any payment
or compensation. Pursuant to the Longhua Store
Lease Agreement (as supplemented), the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
RMB6,821,000 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB6,830,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB6,830,000 for the year ending 31
December 2016.
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Lease of three store premises (Continued)

(ii)

Lease of store premises for the Songgang Store
Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 30 April 2005
(“Songgang Store Lease Agreement”) between BJH
Group (as landlord) and BJH Department Stores (as
tenant) and as supplemented by two supplemental
agreements dated 18 November 2006 and 29 March
2007 respectively both made between BJH Group
and BJH Department Stores, BJH Department Stores
leases the store premises situated at Levels 1 to
5, Jiahua Emporium, No. 293 Songgang Section
of State Avenue 107, Baoan District, Shenzhen,
Guangdong Province, the PRC with a gross floor
area of approximately 23,134 square metres for a
term of 15 years commencing from 1 March 2004
and expiring on 28 February 2019 at a monthly rent
of RMB458,260 during the period from 1 March
2004 to 30 April 2005 and RMB462,680 with effect
from 1 May 2005. The monthly rent is subject to a
triennial increase of 5% starting from 1 March 2008.
Pursuant to a supplemental lease agreement dated
18 November 2006 between BJH Group and BJH
Department Stores, the parties agreed that if the
Company cannot comply with the requirements
in respect of continuing connected transactions
(including but not limited to obtaining approval by
independent shareholders), BJH Department Stores
has the right to terminate the transactions under
the Songgang Store Lease Agreement by giving
written notice to BJH Group, without any payment
or compensation. Pursuant to the Songgang Store
Lease Agreement (as supplemented), the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
RMB6,427,000 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB6,430,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB6,430,000 for the year ending 31
December 2016.
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Lease of three store premises (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Lease of store premises for the Songgang Store
(Continued)

The rental paid for Longhua store and Songgang
store as disclosed above of approximately
RMB6,821,000 and approximately RMB6,427,000
respectively totaling approximately RMB13,248,000
are included under note 33(a)(i) to the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Lease of store premises for the Gongming Store

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 28 April 2002
(“Gongming Store Lease Agreement”) between &
Y BEREXEER AT (Shenzhen Zhong Peng
Zhan Industrial Co., Ltd.) (“Zhong Peng Zhan”)
(as landlord) and BJH Group (as tenant), BJH
Group leases the store premises situated at No.
1 Changchun Nan Road West, Gongming Town,
Baoan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the
PRC (“Gongming Premises”) with a gross floor area
of approximately 21,8483 square metres for a term
of 15 years commencing from 16 November 2002
and expiring on 15 November 2017 at a monthly
rent of RMB480,546. Pursuant to a supplemental
lease agreement dated 1 March 2004 between
Zhong Peng Zhan and BJH Group (the “Gongming
Store Supplemental Lease Agreement”), Zhong
Peng Zhan has consented that BJH Group can
provide the Gongming Premises for occupation by
BJH Department Stores. Zhong Peng Zhan also
consented that BJH Department Stores shall pay the
rental under the Gongming Store Lease Agreement
directly to Zhong Peng Zhan, and BJH Group has
guaranteed the timely payment of rentals to Zhong
Peng Zhan by BJH Department Stores. Pursuant to
agreement dated 8 December 2006 between BJH
Group and BJH Department Stores, BJH Group
confirmed its agreement to provide the Gongming
Premises for the use by BJH Department Stores and
BJH Department Stores confirmed its agreement to
use the Gongming Premises on the same terms of the
Gongming Store Lease Agreement (including but not
limited to the period of the lease and rental) and BJH
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1.

Lease of three store premises (Continued)

(iii)

Lease of store premises for the Gongming Store
(Continued)

Group and BJH Department Stores further agreed
that if the Company cannot meet the requirements
in respect of continuing connected transactions
(including but not limited to obtaining approval
by independent shareholders), BJH Department
Stores has the right to terminate the lease of the
Gongming Premises by giving written notice to BJH
Group, without any payment or compensation.
Despite BJH Department Stores pays the rental
in respect of the Gongming Premises directly to
Zhong Peng Zhan and not to BJH Group, since
BJH Group is a party to the Gongming Store Lease
Arrangement (as defined below) and BJH Group
has guaranteed to Zhong Peng Zhan the timely
payment of rentals by BJH Department Stores, the
lease arrangement pursuant to the Gongming Store
Lease Agreement, Gongming Store Supplemental
Lease Agreement and the agreement between BJH
Group and BJH Department Stores mentioned
above (“Gongming Store Lease Arrangement”)
constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company. Pursuant to the Gongming Store Lease
Agreement (as supplemented), the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
RMB5,510,000 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB5,520,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB5,520,000 for the year ending 31
December 2016.

The rental paid for Gongming store as disclosed
above of approximately RMB5,510,000 is included
under note 33(a)(ii) to the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015.
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Lease of two store premises and rental income
received from JH Real Estate
FINTEEFHERZER QA (Shenzhen Jiahua Real
Estate Development Company Limited) (“JH Real Estate”) is
owned as to 36% by Mrs. Zhuang and 64% by BJH Group
(a company owned as to 90% by Mr. Zhuang and 10% as
to Mrs. Zhuang). Since Mrs. Zhuang is the spouse of Mr.
Zhuang, she is an associate of Mr. Zhuang. Since Mrs.
Zhuang is interested in the equity capital of JH Real Estate
SO as to exercise or control the exercise of 30% or more
of the voting power at general meetings of JH Real Estate,
JH Real Estate is an associate of Mr. Zhuang and also a
connected person of the Company. The Group leased two
stores premises from JH Real Estate, details of which are set
out as follows:

(i) Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 6 November
2006 (“Shiyan Store Lease Agreement”) between
JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH Department
Stores (as tenant), BJH Department Stores leases
the store premises situated at Level 1 of Commercial
Podium, Jiahua Hao Yuan, Western Shiyan Avenue,
Shiyan Street, Baoan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong
Province, the PRC with a gross floor area of
approximately 5,851.50 square metres for a term of
15 years commencing from 16 November 2006 and
expiring on 15 November 2021 at a monthly rent of
RMB222,357 with triennial increase of 5%. Pursuant
to a supplemental agreement dated 6 November
2006 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the parties agreed that if the Company cannot
meet with the requirements in respect of continuing
connected transactions (including but not limited to
obtaining approval by independent shareholders),
BJH Department Stores has the right to terminate
the transactions under the Shiyan Store Lease
Agreement by giving written notice to JH Real Estate
without any payment or compensation. Pursuant to
the Shiyan Store Lease Agreement, the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores for the
year ended 31 December 2015 was approximately
RMB2,966,000 and has not exceeded the annual cap
of RMB2,970,000. The relevant amount which are
expected to be payable by BJH Department Stores
will not exceed RMB3,090,000 for the year ending 31
December 2016.
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Lease of two store premises and rental income
received from JH Real Estate (Continued)

(i

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 23 February
2009 (“Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement”)
between JH Real Estate (as landlord) and BJH
Department Stores (as tenant), BJH Department
Stores leases the store premises situated at Level
1 of Commercial Podium, Jiahua Shuyuan Yage,
Southwestern Side of Dabao Road, Xinan Jiedao,
Baoan District, Shenzhen City, Guangdong Province,
the PRC with a gross floor area of approximately
2,693.69 square metres for a term of 3 years
commencing from 1 March 2009 and expiring on 28
February 2012 for a monthly rental of RMB80,810.7.
Pursuant to the Supplementary Lease Agreement
dated 28 January 2010 between JH Real Estate and
BJH Department Stores, the monthly rental has been
reduced to RMB53,873.8 effective from 1 February
2010 to the end of the original lease. Pursuant to
a Supplementary Lease Agreement dated 30 May
2011 between JH Real Estate and BJH Department
Stores, the lease has been renewed to another
three years from 1 June 2011 to 31 May 2014 with
a monthly rental of RMB53,873.8. The parties to the
Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement agreed that
if the Company cannot meet with the requirements
in respect of continuing connected transactions
(including but not limited to obtaining approval
by independent shareholders), BJH Department
Stores has the right to terminate the transactions
under the Shuyuan Yage Store Lease Agreement by
giving written notice to JH Real Estate without any
payment or compensation. Pursuant to the Shuyuan
Yage Store Lease Agreement, the total annual
consideration paid by BJH Department Stores was
approximately RMB679,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015, and has exceeded the annual cap
of RMB670,000 by RMB9,000 due to different basis
of calculation by the Company and the auditors.
The relevant amount which are expected to be
payable by BJH Department Stores will not exceed
approximately RMB680,000 for the year ending 31
December 2016.

The rental paid for Shiyan store and Shuyuan
Yage store as disclosed above of approximately
RMB2,966,000 and approximately RMB679,000
respectively totaling approximately RMB3,645,000 is
included under note 33(b) to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2015.
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2. Lease of two store premises and rental income
received from JH Real Estate (Continued)
(iif) Lease of commercial properties to Jiahua Real Estate
Certain commercial properties are leased to Jiahua
Real Estate pursuant to a lease agreement entered
into between BJH Department Stores and Jiahua Real
Estate for commercial purposes. The amount of rental
income received by the BJH Department Stores in
respect of the leasing of commercial properties was
approximately RMB730,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015, and has not exceeded the annual
cap of RMB1,000,000. The relevant amount which
are expected to be receivable by BJH Department
Stores will not exceed approximately RMB1,000,000
for the year ending 31 December 2016.

The rental received as disclosed above of
approximately RMB730,000 is included under note
33(b) to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the terms of the continuing connected
transactions referred to above are made in the ordinary and
usual course of our business, on an arm’s length basis and on
normal commercial terms which are no less favorable than terms
available from independent third parties. The Directors (including
the Independent Non-executive Directors) confirm that these
transactions have been conducted in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions and are of the view that the
terms and conditions of these transactions are fair and reasonable
and are in the best interests of our Company and our shareholders
as a whole.

The Directors, including the Independent Non-executive Directors,
are also of the view that the Annual Caps are fair and reasonable as
far as our shareholders taken as a whole are concerned.

The Directors confirm that they have received a confirmation from
its auditor regarding the matters as stated in Chapter 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules for the continuing connected transactions as stated in
para. (1)(i), (1)(ii), (1)(ii), (2)(0), (2)(ii) and (2)(iii) above.

The Stock Exchange has granted a waiver from strict compliance
with the announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of
the lease agreements.

The Directors confirm that the disclosure requirement in accordance

with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules has been complied with by the
Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
BEEgHRE(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015, revenue attributable to the
largest customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.1% of
the total sales of goods and wholesale of consumables for the year
and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, purchases attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 3.5%
of the total purchases for the year and the five largest suppliers
of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases for the year.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or
any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest in the
major suppliers and major customers noted above.

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company by the
Directors. Based on specific enquiry made with all Directors, the
Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code, throughout the accounting period covered by the
annual report.

None of the Directors or management shareholders of the Company
and their respective associates (as defined in the Main Board
Listing Rules) has an interest in a business which competes or may
compete with the business of the Company or has any other conflict
of interest with the Company during the year.

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Board has
established an audit committee on 30 April 2007, with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the audit committee are
to review the financial reporting procedures and internal controls
and provides guidance in relation thereto. The audit committee
comprises the three Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company. The audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2015 have been reviewed by the audit
committee before recommending to the Board for approval.

If the shareholders of the Company are unsure about the taxation
implications of purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the
exercise of any rights in relation to, the shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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The net proceeds raised from the Company’s newly issued and
listed shares on the Stock Exchange in May 2007 (after deduction
of related issuance expenses) amounted to approximately
HK$265,000,000.

As of 31 December 2015, approximately HK$188,850,000 of
the proceeds so raised was used, and the unused proceeds of
approximately HK$76,150,000 was deposited with banks, the
security of which was adequately ensured.

Details of the used proceeds raised of approximately
HK$188,850,000 are set out as follows:

° as to approximately HK$29,000,000 for acquisition of the
business of a retail chain in Shenzhen, the PRC;

. as to approximately HK$28,300,000 for opening of new
stores in Yanbu Foshan and Ronggui Foshan, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$8,750,000 for opening of a new
store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$4,350,000 for opening of two new
stores in Xian Baoan Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$10,400,000 for opening of a new
store in Luohu Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$15,800,000 for opening of a new
store in Buji Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$14,300,000 for opening of another
new store in Nanning Guangxi, the PRGC;

° as to approximately HK$9,200,000 for setting up of a
procurement centre in Shiyan Shenzhen, the PRC;

° as to approximately HK$10,416,000 for the purchase of
transportation equipment;

. as to approximately HK$14,609,000 for the purchase of
office equipment;

° as to approximately HK$3,000,000 for the upgrade of the
MIS;

° as to approximately HK$725,000 to promote the Company’s
brand image; and

° as to approximately HK$40,000,000 for the refurbishments
of existing retail stores.

The unused proceeds will be used by the Company for the
purposes as set out in the section headed “Future plans and use of
proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company dated 8 May 2007.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of
the Company.
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Report of the Directors (Continued)
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The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2015 is set out in the sections of Chairman’s Statement,
Management Discussion and Analysis and Five Years Financial
Summary on pages 6 to 10, pages 14 to 26 and pages 147 to 148
respectively of this annual report.

The Group recognises that its employees, customers and business
partners are the keys to the sustainable development. The Group
is committed to establishing a close and caring relationship with its
employees, providing quality products and services to its customers
and enhancing co-operation with its business partners.

The Group is committed to maintaining a clean, energy saving and
harmonious environmental conservation policy.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is approved in
accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group is continuously monitoring their compliance to ensure
that the Group abides by such laws and regulations from time
to time. Besides those general laws and regulations such as the
Company Law of the PRC, the Listing Rules of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, the Group has also complied in all material respects with
all the laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business of the Group.

For and on behalf of the Board
Zhuang Lu Kun
Chairman

29 March 2016
Shenzhen, the PRC
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EiE : +852 2218 8288
{858 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jiahua
Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 56 to 146, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

Annual Report 2015

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

FAETHEEP115R
FkLHI>251

BEZFFEERERDAIMIRR
(EFEHEEMHA LA BERAA])

AZBEND TR EZFEE6 E146 A FTE =3
BEERARABR(ERA])RENBAR
(BB EXEDNRAMBERE - BF
BRR-_ZF-—AF+-A=+—B0EaH
BHRRKREBEZ B EFENGES 2K
R HERGEPRLGEEASRER N
LREEBSHABRME R EMERRE -

BERREFAERBET LGRS EHM
BEMBEREENRBFBRAGI 2 HEE
SKGRGEMBRE  WMEEHEEMA TS
iR REBEERBIREGE MWK
BEHNERIES] - AR A M RER T
EHRGFERME A E AR -

AZBEMNETAREBEEZTHENER - &
RAEMBHRRBERER  URRZBHEXE
[ ETEL®RE - MAEEMAR - A&
BEE TR ARENATHERNEBALRA
BORERE -

AZBMERBRELSHMASEMNEE
RBCEREITER TIE - ZFERNERAZ
BENRETEERE YR RETERL
EAREHEESFEMBRREE NFHE EM
BERFARRERAL -



Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
BIZEEMRE (&)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number PO5057

Hong Kong, 29 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meZHEWRER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-—RAFE+-_A=+—HIEE

2015 2014
—EB-If —E—NF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR¥T T ARETT
Revenue A 6(a) 839,674 821,249
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAR (579,767) (556,965)
259,907 264,284
Other operating income R F SN 6(b) 66,169 74,949
Increase in fair value of investment REWE 7 AFEEZM
properties \ 13 3,100 7,000
Selling and distribution costs AN (214,561) (213,675)
Administrative expenses TR (43,887) (42,222)
Other operating expenses H g (5,237) (10,317)
Operating profit 4RSS T 7 65,491 80,019
Share of loss of an associate FEE — KRB E N A2 B8 (1,475) (2,009)
Finance cost BTG A 8 (13) (1,238)
Profit before income tax b BT 5 54 BDE F) 64,003 76,772
Income tax expense FriS Rt 5 2 9 (18,414) (18,116)
Profit for the year FREF 45,589 58,656
Other comprehensive income Hipir & Wz
[tem that will not be reclassified to BreEfsEEEaik
profit or loss: ZIEH
Revaluation gain upon transfer of  E¥WEHME  BE &
owner occupied land and building  RIFEEBEERE Y ER
to investment properties ZEFRE - 574
Deferred tax BIERTE - (143)
Other comprehensive income AEEHMBEKE -
for the year, net of tax 2 HIRBiE - 431
Total comprehensive income FELXERGZERE
for the year 45,589 59,087
Profit/(loss)for the year BT AL ESFIES
attributable to: (E518) :
— Owners of the Company - B RREREEA A 45,600 58,656
— Non-controlling interest - JEERR AR i (11) -
45,589 58,656
Total comprehensive income UTALTEEZEEA :
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company -BRRERFAEA 45,600 59,087
- Non-controlling interest - IEIERR AR R (11) =
45,589 59,087
Earnings per share for profit FREAQEREE AEMN
attributable to the owners of the B zEREF
Company during the year
— Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —HEAR#EE(ARESD) 11 4.40 5.65
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e MR &R

As at 31 December 2015
R=ZZE—AF+=-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-hF —ET—-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB NERE 12 102,798 79,464
Investment properties REME 13 260,100 257,000
Prepaid land lease B LS 14 13,184 13,445
Intangible asset | EE 15 15,000 =
Deposits paid Bfike 16 10,214 8,374
Interests in an associate /NI ol 17 116 1,501
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRERE 18 10,833 -
412,245 359,874
Current assets REBEE
Inventories and consumables FELSER 19 63,190 83,274
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR K 20 12,482 4,924
Amount due from non-controlling FE U SETE B A% B
interest of a subsidiary 25 250 -
Deposits paid, prepayments and BEfES - BEIRER
other receivables H i fE YR IE 16 54,352 60,821
Pledged bank deposits B RITIFK 21 - 100,000
Cash and bank balances NE NMIRITER 22 293,271 321,703
423,545 570,722
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade payables FEFE ZBRR 23 189,006 210,375
Coupon liabilities, deposits received, EZ&& - EiRS -
other payables and accruals HipENIBENETE A 24 58,978 58,827
Amount due to a director ER—REEFIE 25 59 59
Provision for taxation TIE B 10,844 9,881
Bank borrowing, secured RITIER — B R 27 - 100,000
258,887 379,142
Net current assets REBEEFE 164,658 191,580
Total assets less current liabilities #EERMRBHERS 576,903 551,454
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
e Mg R & ()

As at 31 December 2015
RZE—RF+-A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-fHF —T-mF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = ARET T ARETIT

Non-current liabilities IRBER
Deferred tax liabilities EEFRIEEE 26 13,031 12,256
Net assets EEFE 563,872 539,198

EQUITY e

Share capital A A 28 10,125 10,125
Reserves EE 29 553,508 529,073

Equity attributable to the owners of Zx2 T #EH A 1L RE

the Company 563,633 539,198
Non-controlling interest IR R 239 =
Total equity R 563,872 539,198

Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
GERE AR
Director Director

EE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-T-—RE+-A=1+—HIEE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

FOAREARGRS

Statutory Share  Property Non-
Share  Share Stafutory  welfare  Merger  option revaluation Translation Retained Dividend controling Total

Notes  capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reseve  reseve  profits  proposed Total interest  equiy
HERA BRE hREH 2k

it Bt RORE ieRE  EE GRRE 0 RE 0 BR ERBE REMM RERE &% 0 #E  EBAE

RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

AEHTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTT ARMTZ ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARRTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR

At 1 January 2014 W-F-BF-A-H 10,125 252478 46210 2086 123713 U - (99 157524 20854 500965 - 500,960
Profit for the year R - - - - - - - - 586% - 5806% - 5865
Other comprehensive income~ £t 2 B - - - - - - 431 - - - 431 - 431
Total comprehensive income - £A2ANELES - - - - - - 41 - 865 - 50087 - 5007
for the year
Dividend approved for 2013~ ~Z-ZEZBHERS  100) - - - - - - - - - (085 (085 - 083
Proposed final dividend “E-MEREASRE  100) - - - - - - - - 165 21,165 - - -
for 2014
Transfer o Stautory reserve. EBE ARG - -3 - - - - - %) e = = e
At31 December 014 and  HZF-MF 10125 262418 50,222 2206 12313 P 431 (%9 191063 21,165 539,198 - 539,198
1 January 2015 tZA=t-AR
“3-15-A-A
Captal contributon by ~BHBLTHARES - - - - - - - - - - - %0 %0
non-controling interest g
of a subsidiary
Profitand total comprehensive R EHR2EE 2 = = = = = = B Y] - 4H0 (1) 45580
income for the year aE
Dividend approved for 2014~ —E-MEVEHERS  100) - - - - - - - - - (1165 (21,165 - [1169)
Poposed fnaldvidend ~~ —F-REERAERS  100) - = = = = = = - (1378 13176 = = =
for 2015
Transfer tostatutory esene EHZEERE - - 4T - - = = - W) = = = =
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1F 10125 252478 54979 2086 123713 U 431 (969) 218730 13176 563,633 29 563,872
tzA=t-A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-_Z-—RAFE+-_A=+—HIEE

2015 2014
—E-—FEF

—E—OF
RMB’000
ARET T

Notes RMB’000
Bt & AR®T T

Cash flows from operating activities EEZEHERE

Profit before income tax BR PS8 A8 64,003 76,772
Adjustments for: AT SBIELFHE
Interest income FLEWA 6(b) (4,985) (9,524)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BERRETE

equipment 7 27,731 31,033
Obsolete inventories written-off and (R E 17 B e &

inventories loss FEEE 7 813 610
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HE®E - WE &

equipment B0 7 45 199
Written off of property, plant and MBI - BB REE

equipment - 1,254
Amortisation of prepaid land lease & - £ 3 FH S 5 7 261 261
Increase in fair value of investment EWENTELEN

properties 13 (3,100) (7,000)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FKHB AR ZEIE 7 204 -
Impairment loss on other receivable  EH {th fE I Z B R E B 18 7 3,020 -
Share of loss of an associate B —RELZ AR EE 1,475 2,009
Operating profit before working capital %48 & & & &) A& L= 7

changes 89,467 95,614
Decrease in inventories and FE k5 FEmR D

consumables 18,286 21,668
Increase in trade receivables FEUE 5 BRZIE N (16,767) (8,336)
Increase in deposits paid, B - BAREREM

prepayments and other receivables JE s R IE 2 (2,411) (14,775)
Decrease in trade payables e E SERFUR D (924) (18,626)
Increase/(decrease) in coupon EEEE  BluRe - Hitb

liabilities, deposits received, ENFIBERESER

other payables and accruals a0, CRid) 931 (5,268)
Cash generated from operations IR IRATISIE S 88,582 80,277
Interest received SR & URE) 4,985 9,524
Income tax paid EHFE/H (16,977) (13,513)
Net cash from operating activities AREREEATRHE 2 F 58 76,590 76,288
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
meReRER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RF+_A=+—HIFE

2015 2014
—E-EF —E—OF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Y AR®T T ARETT

Cash flows from investing activities REZHNWRERE

Increase in deposits i (1,840) (853)

Disposal of a subsidiary, net of HE—RWBAR - Mk 36 (5,107) =
cash disposed HERS

Purchase of property, EAWE  BERRE (61,313) (28,133)
plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible asset BAEREE (15,000) -

Proceeds from disposal of property, H:l"%%¥ Jﬁﬂ%&%ﬁﬁ 203 626
plant and equipment FECEN

Purchase of available-for-sale financial ,E%)\—H/\Hj’%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ (10,800) —
asset

Decrease in bank deposits maturing ~ R=1& A BRI Z IR1T1FR 3,740 6,244
over three months Ve

Decrease in pledged bank deposits EIRRITFE UL 100,000

Investment in an associate R—REEQRINIRE - (3,600)

Net cash from/(used in) investing REEZE S (FH)E2 19,883 (25,716)
activities JFER

Cash flows from financing activities BEEZEHNRESRE

Repayment of bank borrowing RITEREERIE (100,000) -

Dividends paid to owners of the ERNARRAREEARE (21,165) (20,854)
Company

Net cash used in financing activities B LB 2 EEE (121,165) (20,854)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁi—"—"ﬁ“% (24,692) 29,718
and cash equivalents W), nE

Cash and cash equivalents J?\\ FJ HHWEBEESRES 306,639 276,921
at 1 January £EY

Cash and cash equivalents Rt+t-—BA=+—HHNBEEK 22 281,947 306,639
at 31 December HeZEEY
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PR ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RLEE

Jiahua Stores Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its registered
office and its principal place of business are located at
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman KY1-1111, the Cayman Islands and Level 4, Jiahua
Ming Yuan, 2146 Xinhu Road, Baoan Central District,
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC”) respectively. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the financial
statements.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2015 were approved for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) on 29 March 2016.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 56 to 146 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collectively includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

In addition, the Group has adopted the amendments
to the Listing Rules issued by the Stock Exchange
relating to the disclosure of financial information with
reference to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) during the current financial year. The
main impact on the financial statements is on the
presentation and disclosure of certain information in
the financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR R R MY (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RALEFE

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or revised
HKFRSs and the impacts on the financial statements,
if any, are disclosed in note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for investment properties
which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge and judgement
of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements, are disclosed in
note 4.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are excluded
from consolidation from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on intra-
group assets sales are reversed on consolidation,
the underlying asset is also tested for impairment
from the Group’s perspective. Amount reported in
the financial statements of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

2.1

2.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
MR ER R MY (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RLEE

2.3 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control
is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these

elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.

2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but not control or joint

control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amount are adjusted for
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition change
in the associates’ net assets except that losses in
excess of the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make good

those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between
the Group and its associates are recognised only
to the extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the
associate. The investor’'s share in the associate’s
profits and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide evidence
of impairment of the asset transferred they are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR R R MY (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
FE+-A=+—HILEFE

BHE_T—

2.4

2.5

Associates (Continued)

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired
is capitalised and included in the carrying amount of
the associate. Where there is objective evidence that
the investment in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested for
impairment in the same way as other non-financial
assets.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses. The cost
of an asset comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
the working condition and location for its intended
use. Subsequent expenditure relating to property,
plant and equipment is added to the carrying amount
of the assets if it can be demonstrated that such
expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of the assets.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method, at the following rates per annum:
Leasehold buildings 54 years or the terms
of land use rights,

if shorter
Leasehold improvements 20%
Plant and machinery 10%
Motor vehicles and tools  20%
Furniture, fixtures and 20%

equipment

The assets’ residual values, depreciation method and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at each reporting date.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but
not held for sale in the ordinary course of business,
use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. Investment properties
are measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein
recognised in profit or loss.

Payments for prepaid land lease

Payments for prepaid land lease held for own use
under operating leases represent up-front payments
to acquire long-term interests in lessee-occupied
properties. These payments are stated at cost and
are amortised over the period of the lease on a
straight-line basis as an expense.

Intangible assets other than goodwill

(i) Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are
initially recognised at cost. Subsequently,
intangible assets with finite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line
basis over their useful lives as follows. The
amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss and included in administrative expenses.

Franchise 5 years

(ii) Impairment
Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for
impairment when there is an indication that an
asset may be impaired. Intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they may be impaired.
Intangible assets are tested for impairment by
comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see note 2.9).
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2.8

2.9

Intangible assets other than goodwill

(Continued)

(ii) Impairment (Continued)
If the recoverable amount of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount; however, the carrying
amount should not be increased above the
lower of its recoverable amount and the
carrying amount that would have resulted
had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. All reversals
are recognised in the income statement
immediately.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease,
intangible assets with finite useful lives, deposits paid
and prepayments and investments in subsidiaries and
associate are subject to impairment testing. They are
tested for impairment whenever there are indications
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell, and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of money
and the risk specific to the asset.
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2.9

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss has been recognised.

Foreign currency translation
The financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is also the functional currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the reporting
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the reporting date retranslation
of monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms

of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Annual Report 2015

2.9

2.10

FEREERE(HE)
SAHEREN S @ HMEEYL &
EAEZRORNEMEERR
ERA - A S BRIRIBILE
ERERANKNEEAR
(BNReELEM)METE -
gt - B B EE B ETRER
& B RIAR e E A BAIK
FEITR -

i+ B B AT MR B & BR AT AR A
SHHIRAMES - RIBERE
BiE - HEEREETSESR
11 2 B UL (LU 1 T BB RE MV B
EERITE S

HERE
MBHRERAARBIE(EIR
RARBINEEER) o

KR & 8 & E Bl B % ok
- ERINEETHR SRR
X5 B HMERERBREK
EREENTNGEEE - RS
B BINESHENEREER
BERZANERRE - HE
ERERXHERBEREHR
HENEERBBELMNINE
Wat MR - RNBaE P HER -

BINERE LA EMIEEH
HEHAEMBKRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR R R MY (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RALEFE

2.10 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

2.11

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
RMB. Assets and liabilities have been translated into
RMB at the closing rate at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into the RMB at
the exchange rate ruling at the transaction dates, or
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss
as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and the
use by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest
and dividends, net of rebates and discounts. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable,
can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods are recognised upon transfer of
the significant risks and rewards of ownership
to the customers. This is usually taken as the
time when the goods are delivered and the
customers have accepted the goods;

(if) Commissions from concessionaire sales are
recognised upon the sale of merchandise by
the relevant stores;
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2.11 Revenue recognition (Continued)

2.11 WARER(E)

(i)

(iv)

Administration and management fee income
are recognised on an accrual basis when
the right to receive the income has been
established or as services are provided
according to contract terms;

Rental income under operating leases is
recognised in accordance with note 2.12 (iii);
and

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method
by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of that financial asset on initial
recognition.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

(i)

Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.
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2.12 Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the profit or
loss on a straight line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rentals are charged to the profit or
loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

Assets leased out under operating leases
as the lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases
are measured and presented according to
the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised as
an expense over the lease terms on the same
basis as the rental income.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the periods covered by the lease
terms, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease income receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are
earned.
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213

2.14

Inventories and consumables

Inventories comprise merchandise purchased for
resale and are stated at lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of merchandise, representing
the purchase cost, is calculated on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less any
applicable selling expenses.

Consumables for own consumption are stated at
cost. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those claims from or obligations to, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to
the fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the
taxable profit for the year. All changes to current tax
assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of
tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be
utilised.
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2.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value under

Unless the

presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amount

on these investment properties are measured using
the tax rates that would apply on sale of these
investment properties at their carrying amount at the
reporting date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within

a business model whose objective is to consume

substantially all the economic benefits embodies in

the property overtime, rather than through sale.

HKAS40 “Investment Property”.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associate, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting

date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items
that are charged or credited to other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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2.14 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(if) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recover.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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2.16 Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial assets
other than investments in subsidiaries are set out
below.

The Group’s financial assets include available-for-sale
financial assets, trade receivables, other receivables,
amount due from non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary and cash and bank balances. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and only
when, the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Regular way purchases
of financial assets are recognised on trade date.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investment
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are reviewed
to assess whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such evidence exists, impairment
loss is determined and recognised based on the
classification of the financial asset.
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2.16 Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets

These assets are non-derivative financial assets
that are designated as available-for-sale or are not
included in other categories of financial assets.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets
are carried at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in other comprehensive income, except
for impairment losses and foreign exchange gains
and losses on monetary instruments, which are
recognised in profit or loss.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other than
at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
determine whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment.
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2.16 Financial assets (Continued) 216 sWMEEE)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial assets includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one or more of the
following loss events:

significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

= significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

S a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of an investment in an equity instrument
below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured and recognised as follows:

Loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss and
directly reduces the carrying amount of financial asset
when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account for the relevant financial asset.
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2.16

217

2.18

Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

For available-for-sale equity investment that is carried
at cost, the amount of impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss is
not reversed.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium (net of
any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals and amount
due to a director.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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2.18
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2.20

Financial liabilities (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Coupon liabilities

Coupon liabilities are recorded as liabilities when
coupons are sold. Coupons used in exchange for
products during the year are recognised as sales and
transferred to profit or loss using the coupon sales
value.

Provisions, contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits
is remote.
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2.21 Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(@)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i

(ii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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2.21 Related parties (Continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(0)

v)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i

(ii)

that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.
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2.22 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised until
the time of leave.

Retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the PRC
government, the Group participates in a local
municipal government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Retirement Scheme”), whereby the subsidiaries of
the Company in the PRC are required to contribute
20% of the basic salaries of its employees to
the Retirement Scheme to fund their retirement
benefits. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of the
subsidiaries of the Company in the PRC. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the Retirement
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions
under the Retirement Scheme. Contributions under
the Retirement Scheme are charged to profit or
loss as incurred. There are no provisions under the
Retirement Scheme whereby forfeited contributions
may be used to reduce future contributions.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all employees in Hong Kong
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
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2.23

2.24

2.25

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets which require a substantial period of time to
be ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. Income earned
on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is
deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in profit
or loss over the period necessary to match them with
the costs that they are intended to compensate and
are presented separately from the costs.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components
and for their review of the performance of those
components. The business components in the
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors are determined following the Group’s major
operations.

2.23

2.24

2.25

BEREERL

HAUHE - BEXKEERERE
E (B BRR—BEREME
AHRTEREREECEE)
MERREE ZEERA - 5
EREBEZBOKRAN - FE
f& & P 3% % & EE A P VE R B
BREMBRRZRE WA - (e85
EER ZEERARME © FT
BHEMEERAERELHME
RIS TR -

BT Rh

BT BA A B & IR HE E 1% 7] &
BB R AR B A A
WIRFERT - AR FER
R o B AEENBFMAEE
EICRRIE - WA EE
BEAX A B R ERRE R FERR
HEXRADFHZS -

7RI &

AEERBEHMHERITES
RENDEEREAREEEHE
D REHZEBD 2 RKEMA
BHEZHRIABHHER - ##
EREDHEEB D BER -
FMITEE2 R AR B E
B 2 RB RN i AR E 2

ETBEBETE -

—F-REER



Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

B RS RaR o aE (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RLEE

2.26 Share-based payments

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans and the options are awarded to
employee and others providing services to the Group.

All services received in exchange for the grant of any
share-based compensation are measured at their fair
values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the equity instruments awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact
of any non-market vesting conditions.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period
if vesting conditions apply, or recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the equity
instruments granted vest immediately unless the
compensation qualifies for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding increase in the share option
reserve in equity. If vesting conditions apply, the
expense is recognised over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of equity instruments that are expected to
vest. Estimates are subsequently revised, if there is
any indication that the number of equity instruments
expected to vest differs from previous estimates.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options are forfeited or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.
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(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs - first
effective on 1 January 2015

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2015:

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-
2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear.

The adoption of these amendments had no material
impact on how the Group’s financial statements for
the current and prior years have been prepared and
presented.
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group.
HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements'
HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers?

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of
the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after
the effective date of the pronouncements. Information
on new and revised HKFRSs that are expected to
have impact on the Group’s accounting policies is
provided below. The directors of the Company are
currently assessing the impact of other new and
revised HKFRSs upon initial application but are not
yet in a position to state whether they would have
material financial impact on the Group’s results and
financial position.
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative

The amendments are designed to encourage entities
to use judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when
considering the layout and content of their financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the
equity method in accounting for its investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in its
separate financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if the
objective of the entity’s business model is both to
hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to sell
the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity
instruments that are not held for trading at FVTOCI.
All other debt and equity instruments are measured at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.
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New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments (Continued)
HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in
the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of the potential impact of these new/revised HKFRSs
and the directors of the Company so far concluded
that the application of these new pronouncements
will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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BHE_T—

AFE+=A=+—HILEFE

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next year are discussed
below:

Depreciation

The Group depreciates property, plant and equipment on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 5
to 54 years, starting from the date on which the assets
are available for use. The estimated useful lives reflect the
directors’ estimates of the periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment.

Inventory valuation

Inventory is valued using the cost method, which values
inventory at the lower of the actual cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out
method. The estimated net realisable value is generally the
merchandise selling price less selling expenses. The Group
reviews its inventory levels in order to identify slow-moving
merchandise and use markdowns to clear merchandise.
Inventory value is reduced when the decision to markdown
below cost is made.

Customer loyalty programme
Significant estimates is required in determining the
percentage of redemption of credit awards granted to the
customers. These estimates are based on historical records
and managements’ judgement. Management reassesses the
estimation at each reporting date.
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Impairment of receivables

The management review receivables on a regular basis to
determine if any provision for impairment is necessary. This
estimate is based on the credit history of its customers,
past settlement and industry practice and current market
conditions. Management reassesses the impairment of
receivables at each reporting date.

Income tax

Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision of income tax and the timing of payment
of the related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current tax and deferred tax
provisions in periods in which such determination are made.

Deferred tax liabilities

The recognition of deferred tax liabilities requires assessment
of the temporary differences which arise as a consequence
of different accounting and tax treatments. These temporary
differences result in deferred tax liabilities are included
within the statement of financial position. Deferred tax
liabilities are measured using substantially enacted tax rates
expected to apply when the temporary differences reverse.
Deferred tax liabilities are not recognised where it is more
likely than not that the liabilities will not be realised in the
future. This evaluation requires judgements to be made
including the forecast of future taxable income. Recognition
therefore, involves management’s judgement regarding the
future financial performance of the particular legal entity in
which the deferred tax liabilities have been recognised and
interpretation of country specific tax law and the likelihood of
settlement. However the actual tax liabilities could differ from
the provision and in such event the Group would be required
to make an adjustment in a subsequent period which could
have a material impact on the Group’s income statement.

Fair value measurement
The assets included in the Group’s financial statements
require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.
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Fair value measurement (Continued)

The fair value measurement utilises market observable inputs
and data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair
value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);
° Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other

than Level 1 inputs;

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on
the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect
on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items
between levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures investment properties at fair value. For
more information in relation to the fair value measurement of
the item, please refer to note 13 to the financial statements.

On adoption of HKFRS 8 Operating Segments, the Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components
and review of these components’ performance. There are
two business components/reportable segments in the
internal reporting to the executive directors, which are
operation and management of retail stores and wholesale of
consumables. No operating segment analysis is presented
as less than 10% of the Group’s revenue, operating result
and asset is attributable to the wholesales of consumables
for the year ended 31 December 2014. During the year,
the Group disposed its non-major business component of
wholesale of consumables.
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5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Revenue from external customers for each operation
category, is disclosed in note 6(a).

The PRC is the country of domicile of the Group. The country
of domicile is determined by referring to the country which
the Group regards as its home country, has the majority of
operations and centre of management.

No separate analysis of segment information by geographical
segment is presented as the Group’s revenue and non-
current assets other than available-for-sale financial assets
are principally attributable to a single geographical region,
which is the PRC.

Information about a major customer

There was no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015.

REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME

(a) Revenue
The Group is principally engaged in operation
and management of retail stores, wholesale of
consumables and provision of factoring services.
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover,
represents invoiced value of goods sold, net of
value added tax (“VAT”), and after allowances for
returns and discounts; rental income and the value
of services rendered. Revenue recognised during the
year is as follows:

2EER (&)
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@ BB D 2 D EHERDIT

BREEEFHNEHR
REE-_ZT-—NFR-_ZT—AF+=
A=+—HILFE BEE—F,G
REBURZE10%E A L ©

W A R HoAh &8 & U A

(@ WA
AEEXEEBREERERE
TEIE - LB HFEMRREER
R - WA(MAELERZ
EEB)EEHEMNRIEE
B(MgER]) RRERITNE
BEHEEE - TN EHESIA
KRt REONEE - FARE
REYURALT -

2015 2014
—E-I1fF —T—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Sales of goods HEEM 578,685 628,619
Commissions from concessionaire HEHEFSHES
sales 115,038 114,142
Rental income from sub-leasing of £ #8452 &9 & U A
shop premises 45,342 40,806
Rental income from investment HEYEMB WA
properties 8,997 8,448
Wholesale of consumables L8 5 FEm 90,970 29,234
Interest income from factoring T BRERSEZFBWA
services 642 -
839,674 821,249
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6.
(Continued)
(b) Other operating income
An analysis of the Group’s other operating income is

WAREEE WA (&)

(b) EHpEERA
AREBEAMEEWA Z D0

as follows: N

2015 2014
—Z-1f% —T-0F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T
Interest income FBUTA 4,985 9,524
Net exchange gain & 150 %58 348 325
Government grants (note) SR EEN D) 2,097 2,477

Administration and management fee 2k (& £ & i FY 1T B &

income from suppliers EEBWA 42,403 41,526
Others Hih 16,336 21,097
66,169 74,949

Note:  Various local government grants have been granted to
a subsidiary of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2015. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies attaching to these government
grants.
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7. OPERATING PROFIT 7. RKERA

2014
—g-FF —T-mF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT

Operating profit is arrived at after charging: £&& &% A 2 IR A FIEE -

Cost of inventories sold recognised as RAERITHBEEFERA
expense 579,767 556,965
Auditor’s remuneration TE 992 851
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BERREBITE
equipment 27,731 31,033
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEAT 1 Hb < 2 5 261 261
Impairment loss on other receivable Hoqth fE IR IE 2 R E 3,020 =
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME  BEMREEE
equipment 45 199
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREFHEEHERES
land and buildings 49,010 51,442
Obsolete inventories written-off MR ERFSE 224 217
Inventories loss GFEEE 589 393
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary W — KB A R EE 204 -
Staff costs, including directors’ BIXAK  BIEESRHE
emoluments (note 31(a)) (Ff5E31(a))
Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 76,933 77,925
Contributions to retirement schemes RIS ETEIHE R 9,888 9,400
86,821 87,325
and crediting: KEstA
Net exchange gain M R 15 a 348 325
Rental income from investment properties & ¥)% > & WA 8,997 8,448
Sub-letting of properties iR
— Base rents —HAHESE 42,199 36,735
- Contingent rents * — SRR 3,143 4,071
45,342 40,806
Total gross rental income ‘RS WA 54,339 49,254
Less: Direct operating expenses arising & : RE AN BEE S A
from investment properties that REMEEENEZLE
generated rental income during the year 5 (28) (26)
Less: Outgoings of sub-letting of W D HEYERE
properties (14,215) (12,761)
Net rental income FHEWA 40,096 36,467
Note: BiEE
* Contingent rents are calculated based on a percentage of the * SRR DHBRBERERZIRES A
relevant sales of the tenants pursuant to the rental agreements. HEMEBETAEDLLFTE -
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8. FINANCE COST

RREFRMBFHX

Interest expense on revolving loan

B # R AR

2015 2014
—E-1F

—E—OF
RMB’000
AREET T

RMB’000
ARBT R

13 1,238

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

FREBiR

2015 2014
—E-HF —TlF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT

Current income tax BNEAFR IR
- PRC enterprise income tax PR EAEH 15,361 14,952
- PRC withholding income tax TR PR ISY 2,278 1,414
17,639 16,366
Deferred tax (note 26) EIEFRIE (M 5E26) 775 1,750
18,414 18,116

The Group is not subject to any taxation under the
jurisdiction of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands
during the year (2014: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong
for the year (2014: Nil).

Subsidiaries of the Company established in the PRC were
mainly subject to PRC Enterprise Income Tax at the rate of
25% for the year under the income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC (2014: 25%).

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
implementation of the new Corporate Income Tax Law of
the PRC issued on 6 December 2007, a 10% withholding
income tax shall be levied on the dividends remitted by
the companies established in the PRC to their foreign
investors starting from 1 January 2008. Dividends declared
or proposed out from the profits generated by the PRC
companies after 1 January 2008 shall be subject to this
withholding income tax.
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FriewipE (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting RERARRAENREHR Y HEEe st
profit at applicable tax rates: i A2 AR

2015 2014
—E-FHF —T-0mF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Profit before income tax B PTS A5 B4 A 64,003 76,772
Tax on profit before income tax, FRETIS B RS M AT IE - 1%

calculated at the rates applicable ARG REER R B

to profit in the tax jurisdictions concerned ~ F#IFI K& 16,154 19,327
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A MR NR G E 1,135 766
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARMIRANRIEZE (2,095) (3,917)
Effect of withholding income tax on REFERRMMB AT AHY

distributable profits of the Group’s s M TIPS &

PRC subsidiaries 2,278 1,414
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERHRIEEBRNRGETE 942 633
Tax loss utilised EFEAHIEERE - (107)
Income tax expense PG BB 2 18,414 18,116

10. DIVIDENDS 10. K2
(a) Dividends attributable to the year (@ AEEELERE

2015 2014
—E-1F —T—mF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Proposed final dividend for the year & —Z—RF+_-H
ended 31 December 2015 of =+—HIEFERRER
approximately RMB1.27 cents per HIfR BB ZERNHAR
ordinary share (2014: RMB2.04 #1271 (ZE—EF -

cents) AR#2.045) 13,176 21,165
The final dividend proposed after the reporting date WEHEBEZRTIRAKRERE
has not been recognised as a liability at the respective VEERABEBERESEMNE
reporting date, but reflected as an appropriation of B BERBRAZFTENRE
retained profits for that year. A B o
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10.

11.

98

DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(b) Dividend attributable to the previous year,
approved and paid during the year

10.

RE (&)
(b) FARAERIKMHN LEF
ERERE

2015 2014
—E-—REF —ZEE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Final dividend in respect of the

previous year, of RMB2.04 HEFEA RIS TR
cents per ordinary share (2014: BIRARE2.040 (=2
RMB2.01 cents) —mF : AR¥2.0159)
— Approved during the year — FHLE 21,165 20,854
- Paid during the year —F AR (21,165) (20,854)
EARNINGS PER SHARE 11. ERER

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB45,600,000 (2014: RMB58,656,000) and the weighted
average number of approximately 1,037,500,002 (2014:
1,037,500,002) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic
earnings per share as the exercise price of the Company’s
outstanding options were higher than the average market
price for the years and there were no other potential dilutive
ordinary shares in existence during the years.
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HE_Z-—RF+_A=+—HIFE
12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - - BEKRXRE
Motor ~ Furniture,
Leasehold ~ Leasehold  Plantand vehicles  fixtures and
buildings improvements  machinery  andtools  equipment Total
FA KE
HERT RENZRE RERME NMERIA Rt %
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2014 RZE-ME-5-H
Cost A 32,035 208,703 20,374 11,708 102,119 374,934
Accumulated depreciation Zithe (063 (175173 (13332 (9,382 (81,851  (280,001)
Net carrying amount BAFE 31,472 33,530 7,042 2,321 20,568 94,933
Net carrying amount BEFE
At 1 January 2014 RZF-BF-A-H 31,472 33,030 7,042 2,321 20,568 94,933
Additions RE - 26,870 25 - 1,238 28,138
Disposals e - - (6) (420) (399) (825)
Depreciation g (125) (2064 (1208 (656 (6980 (31,033
Written off s = = - = (1,254 (1,254)
Transfer to investment properties (note 13 EYERENE(W3) (10,490) = = = - (10,490
At 31 December 2014 R=2-BE+=A=+-8 20857 38,336 5,853 1245 13178 79,464
At 31 December 2014 and 1 January 2015 R-B-MmE+-F=1-A
R-%-1%-f-A
Cost B 21,357 235,573 20,382 10,310 100,241 387,863
Accumulated depreciation 2itihE (500)  (197.237)  (14,5%) (0,065  (87,088)  (308,399)
Net carrying amount REFE 20,857 38,336 5,853 1,245 13,173 79,464
Net carrying amount BERE
At 1 January 2015 RZZ2-1%-F—-H 20,857 38,336 5,853 1,245 13,173 79,464
Additions AE = 44,154 1,036 2,620 3,503 51,313
Disposals L& = (83) = (140) 29) (248)
Depreciation ik (302 (20,323 (1219) (873) (014 (27,731)
At 31 December 2015 R-E-1%¥+-A=t-H 20,555 62,084 5,670 2,852 11,637 102,798
At 31 December 2015 R=%-EF+=A=+-R
Cost A 21,367 279,641 21,414 10,767 103,646 436,825
Accumulated depreciation ZitihE (802)  (17557)  (15,744) (7,915 (92,009  (334,027)
Net carrying amount REFE 20,555 62,084 5,670 2,852 11,637 102,798
FHEREEZERBRAT —z—assn 99
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BE—Z—

12.

13.

100

AFE+=—A=+—HILFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 12. Y% - BERSE (&)
(Continued)
The Group’s leasehold buildings carried at cost were AEBRKATEHEEFMAASP
situated in the PRC and were held under medium term lease. C Wi EAME AR E o
Depreciation charges incurred for the year were recognised FREANITESHORGEAEEEW
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as mERE [HERDHEERA R 1T
“selling and distribution costs” and “administrative expenses” T D RIERHARE27,175,0007C
amounted to approximately RMB27,175,000 (2014: —ZT 5 . AK¥30,934,0007T)
RMB30,934,000) and RMB556,000 (2014: RMB99,000) R ARM556,000T(ZF—MF : A
respectively. R #99,0007T) °
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 13. REWHE
2015 2014
—E-REF —T-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
At beginning of the year FE 4] 257,000 232,000
Transfer from property, plant and BHE  BENMREBEEA
equipment (note 12) (BFsE12) - 10,490
Transfer from prepaid land lease (note 14) FRTEF LS8 A (HffEF14) - 6,936
Revaluation gain upon transfer of property, A2 R - HEREE
plant and equipment and prepaid land I B ER B
lease to investment properties ek - 574
Increase in fair value of investment BB E N TFEE N
properties 3,100 7,000
At end of the year FR 260,100 257,000

The investment properties represent various buildings and
leasehold land located in the PRC held for generating rental
income and the leasehold land will expire in 2066.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2015 were arrived at on the basis of valuations
carried out at the date by Chung Hin Appraisal Limited
(2014: Shing Yin Appraisal Limited), independent firms of
qualified professional valuers not connected to the Group,
who have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences
in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The revaluation gain on date of transfer was recognised
in the property revaluation reserve for the year ended 31
December 2014. The revaluation gain on reporting dates
was recognised in profit or loss for the years.
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B R R B aE ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZRE+-A=t+—ALEE

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 13. REWHE(E)
The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring BREYMENANTFELAEIBEEHER
fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the opening and FEFE c FUNFRNAFELES
closing fair value balance is provided below: HERF I

2015 2014
—=E—hF —E—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Opening balance FAEES

(level 3 recurring fair value) (FEIEBEEHRATE) 257,000 232,000
Transfer from property, plant and EEEYE - BE RS

equipment (note 12) (KIzE12) - 10,490
Transfer from prepaid land lease (note 14) E#H a4 (MizE14) - 6,936

Revaluation gain upon transfer of property, F¥1% « FE k& & L Fa Rt
plant and equipment and prepaid land T EEBEREYE L

lease to investment properties ke - 574
Increase in fair value of investment WEYHE 2 N F{EE N

properties 3,100 7,000
Closing balance FRER

(level 3 recurring fair value) (FIEREURATE) 260,100 257,000

Change in unrealised gains for the year R+-_A=+—HBEESE

included in profit or loss for assets EitABFHNFRARER

held at 31 December W zs 28 3,100 7,000
Fair values of investment properties are determined using the REYMENQNFEDNEBERERE
direct capitalisation method by capitalising the rental income MO(MBEMENEFRAENKE
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for EROEENHSRARBEEZE
the reversionary income potential of the properties. The fair TEEERE - AV EFEETISE A
value measurement is positively correlated to the market TS ACIELL + A4 B B ¥ & Al pk )
monthly rental rate and negatively correlated to term yield. Lt -
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13.

102

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 13. REYHE(E)

Valuation

techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range

fhERKM EXETEE2ERBA EBE

As at 31 December 2015

Investment properties Direct Market monthly rental rate taking RMB80 to
capitalisation into account of individual factors RMB300
method such as location, environment, (2014: RMB80

age, accessibility, floor, size. etc. to RMB270)
(RMB/sg.m)
R=Z2-HF%+=-A=+—H ] L o B
KEME BEEAMEEZ WHEEBAESHENE RE -8  ARKSOLE
e - ADEM B - RTEFMEBEA  ARK300T
R(ARE FHK) —ZT—mEF
ARM80OTLE
AR¥2707T)
Capitalisation rate of 4% to 5%
reversionary income (2014: 4% to
5%)
EEBRANER L= 4%%E5%
—E—F
4%ZE5%)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques during FANEERM I BT ES o
the year.
The fair value measurement is based on the above AEEFEDER ERYESI TS
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ from FOEA(REERAEER) -

their actual use.
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B SRR M EE (48D

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RF+_A=+—HIFE

14. PREPAID LAND LEASE 14. EfRLi#bE
2015 2014
—E-—fF — PO
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
At beginning of the year F4
Cost (DN 14,132 21,198
Accumulated amortisation RET (687) (656)
Net carrying amount BREFE 13,445 20,642
Net carrying amount BREFE
At beginning of the year £ 13,445 20,642
Transfer to investment properties (note 13) L%x&ﬁ%%(ﬁﬁ?m) - (6,936)
Amortisation By (261) (261)
At end of the year FR 13,184 13,445
At end of the year FR
Cost B 14,132 14,132
Accumulated amortisation RETHY (948) (687)
Net carrying amount IREVFE 13,184 13,445
The Group’s prepaid land lease was situated in the PRC AEEBMNLHBEEMHRPER - Wik

which was held under medium term lease.

RHAEARER
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSET 15. BFEEE

Franchise Total

B EERE st
2015 2015

—E—AEF —E—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR%ET

At beginning of the year RELD

Cost D% - .
Accumulated amortisation RET - -
Net carrying amount BREFE - -
Net carrying amount REFE

At beginning of the year RE] - -
Additions NE 15,000 15,000
Amortisation #H - -
At end of the year RER 15,000 15,000
At end of the year RER

Cost D% 15,000 15,000
Accumulated amortisation REHY - -
Net carrying amount R FE 15,000 15,000
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16. DEPOSITS PAID, PREPAYMENTS AND 16. EBff#%& &€ - AAREREME
OTHER RECEIVABLES W

2015 2014
—E-—REF —E

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Non-current assets FREEE
Deposits paid BffiES
- Rental deposits —Heke 8,214 8,374
- Other deposits —HAES 2,000 =
10,214 8,374
Current assets RBEE
Deposits paid BffEe 2,750 2,145
Prepayments SR8 19,607 14,690
Payment in advance for acquisition of IWEEME - BB MEERN
property, plant and equipment TET A 5,012 14,131
Advances to suppliers [ £ JE P A 3K 7,051 4,316
Other receivables (note) H At i Yk o (BT ) 19,932 25,539
54,352 60,821
Note: Included in the balance was input VAT receivable of approximately W ##BPEER=-ZFE—HE+=A
RMB10,751,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: RMB12,513,000). Zt+—HEREEBEEERHOARKE
Input VAT arose when the Group purchases products from suppliers 10,751,000 L (ZF—WMF : AR
and the input VAT can be deducted from output VAT on sales. 12,513,0007T) © A B HEEER AR
SEAHEEREBESMES - LA
SRS I EB IR -
Except for VAT receivables which had no expiry date, all other W 4 JE B R A R U B S B BN -
receivables were repayable either on demand or no later than 31 B E fth B FUIERIR Bk o B
December 2015 and 2014 respectively. BR-_Z—AFKR=-ZT—WNFE+=A
=+—HEE-
The directors of the Company consider that the fair values of other ARBEERAE  ARZZEHNE
receivables, except for VAT receivables, which are expected to ERAREBARE  BER-FAYK
be recovered within one year are not materially different from their Bl 7 H i fE W 18 (B RS E R AN )
carrying amounts because these balances have short maturity ZATEBAREETEERAZR -

periods on their inception.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-Z—RE+-A=t+—ALEE

17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 17. R—XBE QR 2R

—EB-EE —E-mEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T

Share of net (liabilities)/assets Eih(aE) EEFE (484) 991
Goodwill [EES 600 600
116 1,691
Details of the associate are as follows: BN TIEEIS AT ¢
Place of
incorporation/ Particulars Percentage of
establishment of paid-up interest held
and legal form registered by the Company  Principal activities and
Company name of entity capital Indirectly  place of operations
EMAYL RILEER B ¥k rRAREER TEEBR
GRS HEAER BAFE FRzESL ReEgy
Shenzhen Egoos Mobile The PRC, limited RMB10,000,000 30%  Operation and management
Internet Limited liability company of online sale in the PRC
A TBLBEBDERARAA B BREARR  ARE10,000,0007 RPERLEERS FHE
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the above NABESRE @ P2 A5 YHAN
associate is not material to the Group and the summarised EFWTEKXN  MEEREENT -

financial information is set out below:

2015 2014
—E—FF —E-mF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T

Loss from continuing operations LB R T B8 (4,915) (6,696)
Other comprehensive income H b2 B -
Total comprehensive income 2ENEBRE (4,915) (6,696)
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

19.

20.

Unlisted equity securities, at cost ELEMRAES

18.

AN

IHHESREE

2015
—E-RHE

2014
—ET—OF
RMB’000
AREET T

RMB’000
ARBT R

10,833 =

The Group held investments in unlisted companies in the
PRC. They are measured at cost less impairment, if any, at
the end of each reporting period because the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that the fair value cannot be
measured reliably. The directors of the Company have no
intention to dispose of the available-for-sale investments at
the end of reporting period.

INVENTORIES AND CONSUMABLES

19.

AEERTEFERIELTRAMNK
B o HRNE WS BRI ARRE
(B E - ARARREFTRA/R
BERISEMFT B A F(E - ARBERE
ERmEMRLEATHROERE -

FERZ %M

2015 2014
—E—FF —FE—JUF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Merchandise for resale R L 59,495 78,843
Low value consumables KESFER 3,695 4,431
63,190 83,274
TRADE RECEIVABLES 20. EWREFRM

All of the Group’s sales are on cash basis except for certain
wholesale of consumables, bulk sales of merchandise
to corporate customers, rental income receivables from
tenants and provision of factoring services. The credit terms
offered to these customers or tenants from operation and
management of retail stores, wholesale of consumables
are generally for a period of one to three months, while to
customers from factoring services are generally for a period
of one to six months.

BRETRMEEPELN SRR
% AERMEE  BUEEENES
WA KRB RIBEBEF A -
AREBABHEOARSHET - KT
HEREERERETER, HEHR
mEPHEENEER-—RA—=
=AR  -METREXEBZEPNE
EM-—RAE—ZEXREA -
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20.

108

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade receivables were non-interest-bearing, except for
trade receivables from factoring services of RMB9,476,000
which bore interest at rates ranging from 12% to 13% per
annum.

The aging analysis of the Group’s trade receivables, based
on invoice dates, is as follows:

20.

EWE SRR (E)

BREREBREER 2 ARYQ,476,000
T2 EWE SR MER12%E13%
ZHBBEIN BB SERBRE -

AEEZ K E S RRIRET AN
BRI

2015 2014

—E-RF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR®ETTT

Within 30 days 30HA 2,812 4,633
31-60 days 31260H 79 186
61-180 days 612180H 9,562 104
181-365 days 181£365H 26 i
Over 1 year e el 3 il
12,482 4,924

Impairment of trade receivables is established when there
is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to
collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtors
and default or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivables are impaired. All of the
Group’s trade receivables have been reviewed for indicators
of impairment.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are
recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case
the impairment loss is written off against trade receivables
directly. There was no allowance for impairment loss as at 31
December 2015 (2014 Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-ZRE+-A=t+—ALEE

20.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The aging analysis of Group’s trade receivables that were
neither past due at the reporting date nor impaired and, past
due at the reporting date but not impaired, based on due
date is as follows:

20.

B E 5 R (&)

R & A I & a SO E R S B
ERHEERENIEERKE SR
RIRBIH B RORRE DA T

2015 2014

—=E—hF —E—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARET T

Neither past due nor impaired fmm HgORE 12,453 4,923
1-30 days past due #HAI1Z=30H - -
31-180 days past due #HIB1E180H 26 -
181-365 days past due #HI1812365H 3 1
12,482 4,924

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to customers or tenants for whom there were no
recent history of default. Trade receivables that were past
due but not impaired related to a number of customers
or tenants that had a good track record of credit with the
Group. Based on past experience, management believed
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances were still considered fully
recoverable.

The directors of the Company consider that the fair values
of trade receivables which are expected to be recovered
within one year are not materially different from their carrying
amounts because these balances have short maturity
periods on their inception.

I 4% 360 B sl R (B RO B W B 5 BR R SR
BIRRFCHENEPHEEEH -
BB A SR ERN K E 5 ARE
AEEZEEETCHRIFNETPHE
EEH - REBELR  TEEM
F AR EEERYESAEE LG
SINBR R 28R - BRI
SHEBIELRERYE -

RRBEFRE  ARZFEHRNE
ERARHANIE - AR —-FAK
B2 EKEZERZ A FEERLRR
B BMEAER -
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21. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 21. BEFRITER

2015 2014
—Z-1f% —T-0F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARETT

Bank deposits pledged against a bank PLEVS IRTT i BRI IRTT

borrowing included under current assets 173X © st ARBI & & - 100,000
As at 31 December 2014, pledged bank deposits were all R-ZTE—WME+—_A=+—H " A
denominated in RMB and bore interest at fixed rate of 2.69% BEBBITEIAARKE » WK
per annum and had a maturity date on 2 January 2015. 209EMETEFNERIE - HEA A

—F-hRE—HA=H-

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RATESRE  ZZHRTFROE
amounts of these bank deposits approximated their fair HEEATEERESE  REAEZEEH
values because of their short maturity period on inception. PRy BREHIE -
As at 31 December 2014, all the pledged bank deposits had R-ZE—mE+—_A=+—H 21K
been pledged to secure the bank borrowing of the Group WA DRI ERIEAARERE
(note 27). TEENERFE27) o

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22, BERETHEE

2015 2014
—E—FEF —E Py

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBETT

Cash at banks and in hand WITEFERS 174,960 144,182
Bank deposits maturing within RZEARIHN
three months RITFER 106,987 162,457
Cash and cash equivalents for the RemERNAS R
purpose of statement of cash flows BeEEY 281,947 306,639
Bank deposits maturing over R={EAEZHK
three months HITIFH 11,324 15,064
293,271 321,703
The Group had cash and bank balances denominated AEBUAREITENR S RIRITH
in RMB of approximately RMB285,976,000 (2014: A B AR 285,976,000 (=
RMB317,711,000) of which the remittance out of the PRC —F - ARM317,711,0007T) © E
was subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by B R B 2 SRIBZE X R BT B B
the PRC government. B FINEE 11 PR FBII 2R PR ©
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22,

23.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)
The cash at banks bore interests at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Certain bank deposits bore interest
at floating rates with effective interest rates at 31 December
2015 were 0.35% (2014: 0.35%) per annum. The other bank
deposits bore interest at fixed rates with effective interest
rates at 31 December 2015 ranged from 1.55% to 1.93%
(2014: ranged from 2.35% to 2.55%) per annum. They had
maturities ranged from 1 month to 6 months (2014: ranged
from 3 months to 6 months) and were eligible for immediate
cancellation without receiving any interest for the last deposit
period.

TRADE PAYABLES

The credit terms granted by suppliers are generally for a
period of 30 to 60 days. The aging analysis of the trade
payables, based on invoice dates, is as follows:

22,

23.

HERBITHER(E)
RITRSWF BT E - TIRE AR
BRAMERFE - EFRITERRZE
e RZZE—AFE+-_A=+—8H
RERENRA50.35E(-Z— M4 :
0.35[E)  EAbiR1TF sKIZEE F &
e RZE-—RHE+A=1+—
HREBRFFEN F1.55EF1.93
E(ZZE—MF : NF2.35EE2.55
E) - BIBHRA—EAEEA(Z
T—NF: B=@AENEAL)T
% AR REE R — BBfF SR AR B
RIS T BN EUE o

B E SR
HEFRONEEHR R A30E60
H- EBNEZERERIZERAHNERER
DT ¢

2015 2014

—E-RF —T—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R ARET T

Within 30 days 30HR 107,973 117,663
31-60 days 31260H 51,370 60,868
61-180 days 612180H 19,995 19,957
181-365 days 1812 365H 1,512 3,704
Over 1 year —FE 8,156 8,183
189,006 210,375

All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts
of the Group’s trade payables are considered to be a
reasonable approximation of fair values.

FBERIBGRES Bt - AEEZ
ENE ZERFEEERR AR A FE
ZERBHE -
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24. COUPON LIABILITIES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED, 24. ZEE&8@E - -cWixs  r HifE
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS NRERETER

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—UE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR ARETT

Coupon liabilities ZEEEE 10,647 8,777
Deposits received EH&Z%”“@ 16,396 14,242
Other payables (note) HAb AT FRIE (I 5E) 17,017 17,217
Accruals FEztE A 14,918 18,591
58,978 58,827
Note:  Included in the balance was other PRC tax payables, other than iz : BT eEPECEMEHUIEM
PRC Enterprise Income Tax, of approximately RMB1,612,000 at FEHTPEBE RN—_E—FhFE+-A
31 December 2015 (2014: RMB3,350,000). Balance also included =t+—HHAREKE1,612,000T (=ZF
the amounts received from (i) suppliers when they send promoters —P4E . ARH#3,350,0007T) - &
to the retail stores and (ii) staff when joining the retail stores PR BEONEERREEEAESR
of approximately RMB3,523,000 at 31 December 2015 (2014: T ERFE U FE R R ERIE &(“)E/\
RMB2,986,000). BT BT &SRR S T a0 55K
ﬁé‘:sﬁ—ﬁiJr:HEJr—El%@}\E
#3,5623,0007 (ZZE—WF : AR¥
2,986,0007T) ©
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying amounts FTEREYASH - At - KEE
of the Group’s coupon liabilities, deposit received, other EZESE8E - BYWIRE C EihENIE
payables and accruals are considered to be a reasonable LKEAEHAERERAEAEANTEEYZ
approximation of fair values. AIBAIE o

25, AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) NON- 25 MW ({)FERKRE —F

CONTROLLING INTEREST OF A SUBSIDIARY/ BEHE

A DIRECTOR

The amounts were unsecured, interest free and repayable on ERZESEEM - 2 RIREKE
demand. R o
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26.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014 and 2015, deferred taxation
liabilities are provided for in full on temporary differences
under the liability method using a principal taxation rate of
25%.

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised
by the Group and movements thereon during the current and
previous financial years.

26.

ELEHEER
R-F-NOER-_F—AF+=A
=t—B EREETHNEREZEE
BRERELCHARE  ETRERE
ERE25%E o

AT B BRI BB B
B BB £ EARIE R A (8 K A R
23 -

Revaluation of

investment
properties Total
REWEESR @et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AR¥ T
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—NF—F—H 10,363 10,363
Deferred taxation debited to the profit or R IE & AVIELFIH
loss (note 9) (FfF3E9) 1,750 1,750
Deferred taxation debited to other R E 4th 2 mE U S AR T
comprehensive income HIA 143 143
At 31 December 2014 and RZE—OF+ZA=+—
1 January 2015 BN—-_Z—HFE—H—H 12,256 12,256
Deferred taxation debited to the profit or IR 185 YR IE 18
loss (note 9) (Ffi3E9) 775 775
At 31 December 2015 R=ZB—A1F
+=—A=+—8 13,031 13,031

No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of
the temporary differences of approximately RMB269,000,000
(2014: RMB237,000,000) associated with undistributed
earnings of certain subsidiaries established and operate in
the PRC because the Group is in a position to control the
dividend policies of its subsidiaries and it is probable that such
differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.

F A7 5 [ AT R ) ECBT I 2 R 2 BB,
BE BEETERBERIREEZ
B ARIARDIRENBE EREHE
7 A K #269,000,0007T (ZF — Y
F : AR¥237,000,0007T ) A Al 88
] R R BEE - BE R F E AR
RIELEHRARRE -
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26.

114

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2015, the Group has estimated unused tax losses
of approximately RMB11,523,000 (2014: RMB7,756,000)
which were available for offset against future profits and are
subject to expiry period of five years as follows. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of the estimated
tax losses due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.

26.

EEHIESE(E)

R SE B TE & 2 7O B B TE ) &5 AT e
BHEERRH M ERSHREER
HEERR RZE—AF+=A8
=+t—8 AEBEEEHRSHBK
HEEHARKE11,523,0000 (= F
—F - AR¥7,756,0007T) * AJ 4
LK GE B &EF - WIRRIA T 7@
FEHREER - ARETRR R G F
KR MERTEHRIBEEEREBET
REAFIAF IS MERER -

2015 2014
—E-—REF —E g

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Expire in RUATEEER

-2016 e 273 273

=01 ——E—+F 2,580 2,580

- 2018 ——ZE—-N\F 1,160 1,160

- 2019 ——ZE—h*F 3,743 3,743

- 2020 ——E-F 3,767 =
11,523 7,756
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27. BANK BORROWING, SECURED 27.

Current

Bank borrowing repayable on demand

BN A
IRIRE KA EEN
RITEE

RITER - SEA

2015
—E-RHE

2014
—ET—OF
RMB’000
AREET T

RMB’000
ARET T

- 100,000

As at 31 December 2014, the bank borrowing was dominated
in United States Dollars (“US$”), secured by the pledge bank
deposits of approximately RMB100,000,000 (note 21) and
bore interest of floating rate at 1% per annum over the London
Interbank Offered Rate and was repayable on demand.

The bank borrowing had been fully repaid during the year.

28. SHARE CAPITAL

28.

R-ZZE—NE+=-—A=+—8 - BT
BEUERT([ERT]) BEAM  WHIK
IR 1T1F 54 A R ¥100,000,0007C
(FfaE21) IREER - WIRGEERTTHE
EREFNNENMBFE1%0FBF R
B RBRERENEGEE -

ZRITEECNFREREE -

&N

2015
—E-1% —g-NF
Number of Number of
shares shares
BRoEE BRHEE
(000)  RMB’000 (000) RMB'000
(FR) AR¥Tx (FR) ARBFL
Authorised: ETE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.01ET([E
Hong Kong Dollars (‘HK$") TEEER
HK$0.01 each R—A—Bk
At 1 January and +-A=1+—H
31 December 10,000,000 97,099 10,000,000 97,099
Issued and fully paid: BEARAR
Ordinary shares of FREE0.01 TTH)
HK$0.01 each LER
At 1 January R—A—Bxk
and 31 December +-—RA=+—"H 1,037,500 10,125 1,037,500 10,125
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HE-Z—RE+-A=t+—ALEE

29. RESERVES 29. f@#fE
The movements of the Group’s reserves for the year are REBRFAZEBEHEREARE
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in mEBRET -
equity.
The movements of the Company’s reserves for the year are ARARNFAZREEBEHTIOT -

set out below:

Share
Share option  Contributed Retained Dividend
premium reserve surplus profits proposed Total

RitiE BEERE 2 SAR®  RERA RERS it
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARMTn  ARETR  ARMTR

At 1 January 2014 R-Z-ME-A-A 252,478 24 67,848 4,079 20,854 345,283

Profit and total comprehensive IR

income for the year il eatats - S = 20,060 = 20,060
Dividend approved for 2013 TE-CEZEMERE = - - - (20,854) (20,854)
Proposed dividend for 2014~ ~E-MEZEREE - - - (21,165) 21,165 -
At 31 December 2014 and RZE-MEF

1 January 2015 TZAZ+-RR

—“E-1%-A-H 252,478 24 67,848 2974 21,165 344,489
Profit and total comprehensive £/ &

income for the year PANGEE - - - 11,780 - 11,780
Dividend approved for 2014 “E-MEZERERS - - - - (21,165) (21,165)
Proposed dividend for 2015 “E-REZBRRE - - - (13,176) 13,176 -
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-1%

+-A=1t-8 252,478 24 67,848 1,578 13,176 335,104
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RALEFE

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium account is distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, subsidiaries established
in the PRC are required to transfer at least 10% of their net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the entity’s registered capital. The transfer of
this reserve must be made before the distribution of dividend
to the subsidiaries equity owners. The statutory reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity.

Statutory welfare reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, companies established
in the PRC are required to transfer a certain percentage,
as approved by the directors of the subsidiaries, of its net
profit after tax, as determined under the PRC accounting
regulation, to a statutory welfare reserve. This reserve can
only be used to provide staff facilities and other collective
benefits to its employees. The statutory welfare reserve
is non-distributable other than upon the liquidation of the
entity.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group arose as a result of the
reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and represented
the difference between the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued under the reorganisation and the nominal
value of the aggregate share capital/registered capital and
share premium of the subsidiaries then acquired.

Share option reserve
The share option reserve of the Group arose as a result
of the options granted to the employees, directors and
consultant of the Group.

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result
of the reorganisation completed on 30 April 2007 and
represents the excess of the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange for the consolidated net assets
value of the subsidiaries then acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RLEE

Pursuant to the written resolutions of all the shareholders
passed on 30 April 2007, the Company has adopted the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”).

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and/or providing benefits to the
participants and for such other purposes as the Board may
approve from time to time.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at its absolute
discretion, invite any executive or non-executive directors
including independent non-executive directors or any
employees (whether full-time or part-time) of any member of
the Group; any consultants, professional and other advisers
to any member of the Group (or persons, firms or companies
proposed to be appointed for providing such services),
(together, the “Participants” and each a “Participant”), to
take up options (“Option(s)”) to subscribe for shares at a
price determined in accordance with the paragraphs below.

The subscription price in respect of each share issued
pursuant to the exercise of Options granted shall be a price
solely determined by the Board and notified to a Participant
and shall be at least the highest of:

(a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date;

(b) a price being the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the offer date (provided that
the new issue price shall be used as the closing price
for any business day falling within the period before
listing of the shares where the Company has been
listed for less than 5 business days as at the offer
date); and

(c) the nominal value of a share.

The total number of shares, which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 100,000,000 shares, being 10% of
the total number of shares on the listing date, unless the
Company obtains an approval from its shareholders. Options
lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Scheme will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating such 10% limit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR R R MY (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BHE_T—

AFE+=A=+—RHILLFE

On and subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board shall
be entitled at any time, within 10 years after 30 April 2007
to make an offer of the grant of an Option by the Board (the
“Offer”) to any Participant as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select to subscribe for such number of shares
as the Board may determine at the subscription price. In
determining the basis of eligibility of each Participant, the
Board would mainly take into account the experience of the
Participant in the Group’s business, the length of service of
the Participant has exerted and made towards the success
of the Group and/or the amount of potential efforts and
contributions the Participant is likely to be able to give or
make towards the success of the Group in the future.

Notwithstanding any provisions of the Scheme, the limit on
the number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time.

Unless approved by the shareholders, the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Options
granted to each Participant (including both exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.

An Offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by
any Participant (the “Grantee”) who accepts an Offer in
accordance with the terms of the Scheme or (where the
context so permits) the legal personal representative(s)
entitled to any such Scheme in consequence of death of
the Grantee and the Option to which the Offer relates shall
be deemed to have been granted and to have taken effect
when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising acceptance
of the Offer duly signed by the Grantee together with a
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the granting thereof is received by the
Company within the date upon which the Offer is made to
such date as the Board may determine and specify in the
offer letter (both days inclusive).

All share-based compensation will be settled in equity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase
or settle the Options.

The Options vest within one year from the dates of grant and
then are exercisable within a period of four to five years.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
BRI ()

For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE-Z—RE+-A=t+—ALEE

30. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 30. PR Z{tREN (&)

(Continued)

Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to R-E—FAF+_A=+—HARA
the Scheme and the Options outstanding as at 31 December RIEZ 5 2197 b B BB A RE N i R 1T
2015 were as follows: Bl EREEIBAT ¢

Number of Options

EREHE

Balance
Balanceat  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Forfeited at31  Exercise
1January  duringthe duringthe duringthe  duringthe  December price per
Grant to Date of grant Exercisable period 2015 year year year year 2015 share

i
i “E-1F
E-1f 128
-B-8 =t-H
o ERfifE g SROKE
HKS
BT

Independent non-executive

directors
BUFHGES
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung 15 January 2011 17 January 2011 to 36,666 - - - - 36,666 0.90
16 January 2016
ERnrt 5% “E-E-f1tRE
-AtiAR ZE-nE-AiA
Mr. Al i 15 January 2011 17 January 2011 o 36,666 - - - - 36,666 0.90
16 January 2016
ThE4 5% “E—F-AttRE
-AtEA “E-nE-At1rAR
Employees of 15 January 2011 17 January 2011 to 2 - - - - 2 0.90
the Group 16 January 2016
rEEER 5% “E—E-fttRE
-At3AR ZE-nE-ATiA

73,334 - - - - 73,334
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HE-ZRE+-A=t+—ALEE

30. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 30. B Z{REM (&)

(Continued)

Details of the Options granted by the Company pursuant to R-E—NFE+_A=+—HARA
the Scheme and the Options outstanding as at 31 December RIEZ 5213 B B BB AL RE N M R 1T {E
2014 were as follows: Bl EEIBAT ¢

Number of Options
EREEA

Balance
Balanceat  Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Forfeited at 31 Exercise
Tdanuary  durngthe  durngthe  duringthe  duringthe  December price per
Date of grant Exercisable period 2014 year year year year share

mE

g a4 At T SRGRE
HKS
#7

Independent non-executive

directors
BUHES
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung 16 January 2011 17 January 2011 fo 36,666 - - - - 36,666 0.90
16 January 2016
ERmEE ZE——5-f+RR ZE--E-AtAR
ZE-E-R1A
Mr. Al i 15 January 2011 17 January 2011 o 36,666 - - - - 36,666 0.90
16 January 2016
ThE4 “2——&-f+8A Z3—-£-f1+AZ
ZE-E-R1A
Employees of 15 January 2011 17 January 2011 to 2 - - - - 2 0.90
the Group 16 January 2016
rEERES “5-—F-A1RA Z3——F-AttAZ

ZF-nE-A15H

73,334 = = = = 73,334
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BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RLEE

Options granted on 15 January 2011:

The weighted average fair value of Options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2011 was RMB0.331 and were
determined using the Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model.
Significant inputs into the calculation included a share price
on issue date of HK$0.90 and exercise price as illustrated
above. Furthermore, the calculation took into account the
expected dividend yield of nil and a volatility rate of 76.598%,
based on expected share price. Risk-free annual interest rate
was determined at 0.732%.

The underlying expected volatility was determined based on
the historical volatility for a period matching the expected life
of the Options and reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

Pursuant to the Scheme, no options were exercised and no
options were lapsed during the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2015. No options were forfeited during the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2015.

The number of Options exercisable as at 31 December
2015 is 73,334 (2014: 73,334) and have a weighted average
remaining contractual life of 0.05 year (2014: 1.05 year).
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
HE_Z-—RF+_A=+—HIFE

31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 31. EEFMRSARAETEAEMNS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments (@ E=#M2
The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were BEffKERESZEESOT .
as follows:

Salaries,
allowance and Contributions
other benefits  to retirement
Fees in kind schemes Total

e 2ER
wE EtEWNE RAHELER At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARETR  AR®TR  ARETR

2015 —E-1%
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun SEfEim g A - - - -
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong mREE 600 145 43 788
Mr. Gu Wei Ming BEBLE 600 155 43 798
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong SR 720 306 43 1,069
1,920 606 129 2,655
Independent non-executive directors B HHITEE
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRHETE 119 - - 119
Mr. Sun Ju Yi BEEEE 144 - - 144
Mr. Al Ji N REHE 144 - - 144
407 - - 407
2,327 606 129 3,062
2014 —Z-ME
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun SR = = . =
Mr. Zhuang Pei Zhong Dby 600 157 40 797
Mr. Gu Wei Ming BEREE 600 156 40 79
Mr. Zhuang Xiao Xiong HNERAE 720 298 40 1,058
1,920 611 120 2,651
Independent non-executive directors BV HHTEE
Mr. Chin Kam Cheung BRELE 116 = = 116
Mr. Sun Ju i RERLE 144 - - 144
Mr. Ai Ji IkisE 144 - - 144
404 - - 404
2,324 611 120 3,055
No directors of the Company waived any emoluments FARERARREZEZTRELR
paid by the Group during the year (2014: Nil). SEMNEANES(ZZE—HE
FfE) o
No emoluments were paid to the directors of the FRNRQREEWEES[HE
Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the S - EABEBMAKXER
Group or as compensation for loss of office for the SR N Ry £ 5% [ ol B B A 8
year (2014: Nil). (ZZ—UF : &) -
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31. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included
three directors (2014: three) of the Company for the
year, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 31(a).
Details of the remuneration paid to the remaining
two (2014: two) highest paid individual who was
member of senior management of the Group, which
fell within the band of Nil = HK$1 million (equivalent to
approximately Nil — RMB804,000) is as follows:

3. EEFMRSAEBAEME

(&)
(b)

EEEEHFMAL
FALXEBABESFHMHA
TEEARFT=Z2(ZZE—N
F:ZR)EF - FENBE
DKM EE31(@) R E - ERN
FHTITME(ZZT—OF : [
B)EaFMAL(AAEES
BEBAB)NFHIHNTEE
JLE 1,000,0005 7T (49HEE R
ARBZTE ARES804,000
JT)  FEIBE ¢

2015 2014
—E-RfF —E—NF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e RN EYRE
in kind 1,194 1,138
Contributions to retirement schemes  :R{RETE|HK 58 32
1,252 1,170
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the FAXEETES S FE

highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office for the year (2014: Nil).

(c) Senior management’s emoluments
The emoluments paid or payable to 3 (2014: 4)
members of senior management whose emoluments
fell within the following bands:

()

&EFAL  ERBENA
AR BN IR B 22 B ok B
BeE(CE-—mE:-8) -

EREBAEME
ENSEN=2(=F—@O
FoOB)SREEBREZ
e FLATER

2015 2014
—E-—REF —E—NE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBETT

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T L2 1,000,000 T
(equivalent to approximately Nil = (XHHERAREZ LR
RMB804,000) AR #804,0007T)
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32. COMMITMENTS 32. &
(a) Capital commitments (@) EXEE
The Group had the following outstanding capital REBEAF U R ERZMNERK
commitments: g -

2015 2014
—E-FHF —T-0mF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for, BEWME% - BE&EE
in respect of property, plant and EHENEE ST

equipment 4,170 11,461
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) REHEHRE
(i) Group as lessee (i) AEBERFABEA
The total future minimum lease payments RIE Ay it g
under non-cancellable operating leases in FREBEBNRIKE
respect of land and buildings payable to B E=F 7 &KM
independent third parties is as follows: ERFRAAZENT ¢

2015 2014
—E-HF —TWF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETT

Within one year —F R 27,522 2025
In the second to fifth years F_FEEZFERE 85,234 111,141
After five years HF%& 12,904 34,343

125,660 172,505
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32. COMMITMENTS (Continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)
(i) Group as lessee (Continued)
The total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of land and buildings payable
to related companies, namely Shenzhen
Baijiahua Group Company Limited (“BJH
Group”) and Shenzhen Jiahua Real Estate
Development Company Limited (“JH Real
Estate”), companies in which Mr. Zhuang Lu
Kun and Mrs. Zhuang Su Lan, the wife of Mr.
Zhuang Lu Kun, have beneficial interests, are

32.

AIE(1E)
(b) KEHEEREGE)
(i) AEBERRBA (H)
TR IR AT 1 E £t Ko 4

FREHEANRKIE
<F S P e O A R i R
L+ (GEERELESRT)
BRABSEDMEER
ARYITREEEER
Roml([BEEEE])
KA T 2 28 5 3 22
BBERAR([EEFM
EDORERENKE

as follows: FRAOR
2015 2014
—E-IF —T—gEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT
Within one year —FR 22,913 22,835
In the second to fifth years F_-_EEXFERE 48,883 67,075
After five years hFi& 2,703 5,946
74,499 95,856

The Group leases a number of land and
buildings under operating leases. The leases
run for initial periods of one to fifteen years,
with an option to renew the lease terms at the
expiry dates or at dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective landlords.
None of the leases include contingent rentals.

(ii) Group as lessor

The Group sub-leases out a number of land
and buildings under operating leases. One of
the leases run for an initial period of ten years
and is cancellable with four months’ notice.
The rentals on this lease are calculated based
on a percentage of the relevant sales of the
tenants pursuant to the rental agreement.
Contingent rents recognised in the profit or
loss during the years ended 31 December
2015 and 2014 are disclosed in note 7 to
these financial statements. All other leases are
cancellable with one to two months’ notice.
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32. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 32. AE(E)
(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued) (b) KEHEAEGE)
(i)  Group as lessor (Continued) (i) AEBEHEBEAGE)
The Group leases the investment properties AEERBELEHER
under operating lease run for initial periods of Ric&EWE - v HEE
six to ten years. BNETF o
The total future minimum lease receivables BB ARG EHEE
under non-cancellable operating leases from FEWIBIL B = 2 AR
independent third parties are as follows: HEMESETENAT ¢

2015 2014
—E-FHF —T-0mF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Within one year —FR 7,785 7,451
In the second to fifth years H$_-EZFERE 29,502 29,398
After five years AFIE 13,609 20,891
50,896 57,740
The total future minimum lease receivables RiE AL EHE
under non-cancellable operating lease from a g RREWEEESE
related party, namely JH Real Estate, company 5 B (GE fE s 4k A
in which Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun and Mrs. Zhuang MM+ (ks
Su Lan, the wife of Mr. Zhuang Lu Kun, have EEET)EEEDE
beneficial interests, is as follow: #=) ZRIEEENFHE
BT :

2015 2014
—E—hF —E—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT

Within one year —FR 730 730
In the second to fifth years H_-_EFERE - 730
730 1,460
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BEEALIXRS
In addition to those transactions and balances detailed MR EMBERREME DY 2
elsewhere in these financial statements, the following S NEEFRIN - AN BB E A LT
transactions were carried out with related parties: IR
(@) Transactions with BJH Group (2 EHREEEKEZRS

2015 2014
—E-HF —ZT—MOF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT

Operating lease rentals payment 74 @8+ i & F X Y

in respect of land and buildings &4 HEMHS i), (iii) (13,248) (13,143)
Operating lease rentals BRELHNEFHEE (i), (i) (5,510) (5,510)
arrangement in respect of land  FAEM S L HE
and buildings
Rental income arrangement HE WAL HE (iv) 894 1,079
Utilities income arrangement KEBUWAZHE (iv) 518 674
Notes: BEE -
(i) The amounts were determined in accordance with the terms (i) AR R RS E
of the underlying agreements. E o
(if) BJH Group (as tenant) entered into lease arrangements (ii) AEHEEE(EAAE ) BET
with certain independent third parties (as landlords) to lease By E=H(ea%x)iTrM
certain premises rented by the Group. The Group paid rental S UHAEETHALEE
expenses of these premises as disclosed above directly to AAMYE - NEE
the landlords and not to BJH Group. EHZEYEEENETIMIE

BEEEEXNESMAX -

Pursuant to a lease agreement dated 28 April 2002 RBRNTHREREXEGRA
betweenx I IEE B E G MR A R (“Zhong Peng Zhan”) AI(THRIBE]  fER%¥x)HE
(as landlord) and BJH Group (as tenant), BJH Group leases AEEEB(EABERL)MEIL
store premises for a term of 15 years commencing from AHA-—TT_FMA=-TN
16 November 2002 and expiring on 15 November 2017. A&z aEESEHE
Pursuant to a supplemental lease agreement dated 1 March EEEYE  BHA+RSF -
2004 between Zhong Peng Zhan and BJH Group, Zhong H-TT=F+—A+ A
Peng Zhan has consented that BJH Group can provide EZ2-T—+tF+—A+HHEE
the store premises for occupation by BJH Department e IRBERISREEEEEE
Stores. Zhong Peng Zhan also consented that BJH Rl B R-—ZETNF=A
Department Stores shall pay the rental under this lease —BoOEREERE  PBR
agreement directly to Zhong Peng Zhan and BJH Group has AEBREEEEMERYEM
guaranteed the timely payment of rentals to Zhong Peng BEEBEGLRA - RIBETR
Zhan by the Group. EREEEEEERTBEX

NtEEHZRATES - mA
EEEEEREAEEERR
TR NES -
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(a)

(b)

Transactions with BJH Group (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

As at 31 December 2015, the prepaid rent and rental
deposit paid by the Group to BJH Group of nil (2014:
RMB1,140,000) and approximately RMB3,072,000 (2014:
RMB2,072,000) respectively were included in the balances
of deposit paid, prepayments and other receivables of the
Group.

BJH Group (as lessor) entered into a sub-lease arrangement
with an independent third party (as tenant) to sub-lease
part of the retail stores which were rented by the Group.
BJH Group received the rental income and utilities income
as disclosed above on behalf of the Group. Pursuant to a
supplemental agreement dated 6 November 2006 between
BJH Group and the Group, BJH Group confirmed that
the Group was entitled to the rental and utilities income
as lessor from the independent third party commencing
1 March 2004. The rentals and utilities income were
determined in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements.

During the year, the Group leased properties
from JH Real Estate. The operating lease rentals
payment was approximately RMB3,645,000 (2014:
RMB3,607,000). The amounts were determined
in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements.

As at 31 December 2015, the prepaid rent and
rental deposit paid by the Group to JH Real Estate
of nil (2014: RMB302,000) and approximately
RMB606,000 (2014: RMB606,000) respectively
were included in the balances of deposit paid,
prepayments and other receivables of the Group.

(@)

(b)

HREEEREEZRS (H)
GERNCD

(iif) RZZE—RF+=-A=+—
B AEEREEZEEEX
fzEMfAerRBAEES
AMAT(ZZ—HFE: AR
#1,140,0007T ) XX A R #
3,072,000 (=T — M4 :
AR#2,072,0007T) © B35
AREEEMIES - BARKIEA
R H At FEUGRIB A4S £

(iv) BEESEEALEAR—F
BYE=HERMPIILET
MR HHBAEERA
ML TEE - AEEEED
REAEBRRM EXFAEER
WA RDARBUA - RIZ
BEESEEAEEMIA
HAZTTF+—AXAN
WrRiHE  BEZEEERER -
AEBHR-ZTTMF=F—H
RBEEAEE G MZBILE
= HWEE S & ARG
Ao & R ABRBBATIR
BRABIHHRAOGRETE

FAR - AEEMEEREEMR
By -g2fREfSAHA
R #3,645000 (=& — M
F : AR#3,607,0007T) ° %
SREB O AR IR A 1 i M G R E

B AEBREEFMEX
fzENEEEE2RES
MRZT(ZE—WF : AR
# 302,000t ) KK AR
606,000 C (= — 4 = A
R ¥606,0007T) * EFt AR
SEENRE  BANRERE
i FEUR IR B R

—F-REER
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33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 33. BEAITXRZ (&)
(b) (Continued) (b) (&)
During the year, the Group leased properties to JH FR - AEEMEEEMWE
Real Estate. The operating lease rental receivable was HEmE - RS EHREMR
approximately RMB730,000 (2014: RMB730,000). & %A AR 730,000 (=
The amounts were determined in accordance with the T —MF . AR 730,000
terms of the underlying agreements. TT) o Ze IR EBERE RS
ZIERETE ©
As at 31 December 2015, the rental deposit received R-E—RE+_RA=+—
from JH Real Estate by the Group of nil (2014: B AEBEEEERMER
RMB122,000) was included in the balances of B ZEES(ZE—NF .
deposits received of the Group. AR#122,0007T) ¥ E 5 A
AEBEDWIZS E8s -
() Compensation of key management (c) FEEBEAEMS
personnel
2015 2014
—E-AF —ZT—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Total remuneration of directors FEE(MI5E31(a)) M EA
(note 31(a)) and other member FTEEFBEABNFH AR
of key management
— Short term employee benefits —GHIE B ER 5,077 4,520
- Contributions to retirement —RORET B
schemes 274 168
5,351 4,688
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 34. ARQTHBEARRE
THE COMPANY

2015 2014
—=E—hF —E—OF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = AR®T ARETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current asset RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B ARHIEE 67,848 67,848
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE UL BT I 1~ B3R IE 273,424 281,071
Other receivables H Ath fE Y 5RIE 15 2,678
Pledged bank deposits EHERITIFR - 100,000
Cash and bank balances B4 RIR1THER 5,058 3,973
278,497 387,722
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals Hofth e At FR0E K e At
EH 1,116 956
Bank borrowing, secured IRITIER — 2 - 100,000
1,116 100,956
Net current assets REBEEFE 277,381 286,766
Net assets EEEE 345,229 354,614
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE ERAREEA
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY EihfEs
Share capital RN 28 10,125 10,125
Reserves s 29 335,104 344,489
Total equity R 345,229 354,614
Zhuang Lu Kun Zhuang Pei Zhong
APk FEm AR
Director Director
Ea BF
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 35.

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

KT 2~ B MR AR
B R RFEMT :

Company name

AAER

Place of incorporation/
establishment and
legal form of entity

AR/
EAR LV EGIN T

Particulars of
issued share/paid-up
registered capital

BRTRE,/
BAREMERFE

Percentage of interest
held by the Company

ARAREREAD
Directly Indirectly
E# )3

Principal activities
and place of operations

IREBREEHY

Forever Prosperity International British Virgin Islands, limited ~ US$20 100% - Investment holding in

Company Limited liability company Hong Kong
XRERARAT RBRAHE BREAAA 20%n REBETRELER
Ding Xin Investment Company Limited Hong Kong, limited fiability ~ HK$0.1 = 100% Investment holding in
SHREERAR company Hong Kong

&8 BRELAT 0181 REBETRELER

Heng Run Xin Investment Hong Kong, limited liabilty ~ HK$10,000 = 100% Dormant

Company Limited company 10,0007 TRLH
BEBREERARA &8 BREEAT
Shenzhen Ding Xin Department Stores ~ The PRC, limited liability RMB5,000,000 - 100% Dormant

Company Limited company ARH5,000,0007T TmER
RASHEEERAA PE - BREFAT
Shenzhen Commercial Investment The PRC, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Dormant

Management Limited company AE 510,000,000 TREK
MIMAEEHEREERARLA HE - EREEAT (2014: RMB2,000,000)

(2B~ : ARM2,000,0007)

Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua Commercial  The PRC, limited liability RMB50,000,000 - 100% Commercial factoring in

Factoring Limited company AR%50,000,0007 the PRC
TR R EEREREARAR HE - BREELT RAEETRERE
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35.

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows (Continued):

RS~ R S ()
MEBARFENT - (&)

Place of incorporation/ Particulars of
establishment and issued share/paid-up Percentage of interest  Principal activities
Company name legal form of entity registered capital held by the Company  and place of operations
ANABARERIL
ML/ BEARG/ Directly Indirectly
AGEL RUBEREEAER BHREMERFE Ef B TEXBREEHH
BUH Department Stores The PRC, limited liability RMB220,400,000 - 100%  Investment holding
MITEEEEEARAA company AB#220,400,0007C and operation and
mE - FREELA management of retail
stores in PRC
RPEETRERRRE
SHERTER
Guangxi Baijiahua Department Stores The PRC, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Operation and
Company Limited company AR#10,000,0007C management of retall
ERARERERRAT PE - BREMAT stores in the PRC
NERREERTER
Yunnan Baijiahua Department Stores The PRC, limited liability RMB10,000,000 - 100% Dormant
Company Limited company AR %10,000,0007 EEXH
EHAEEREARLA HE - AREELT
Shenzhen BJH Network Technology The PRC, limited liability RMB5,000,000 - 100% Provision of internet
Limited (note () company AR¥5,000,0007 service in the PRC
AMMEEERENRERAR(ME)  +E AREELA RPEREEBERE
Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua Beverage The PRC, limited liability RMB5,000,000 - 95% Qperation of restaurant in
Management Limited (note (i) company AR¥5,000,0007 the PRC

AT EEERRERARAT
(F3EA)

PE - ARALELT

RPEAERE

LB AR BHREC TR
PIRER,/FEBFEREBETEL

The financial statements of the above subsidiaries were
audited by BDO Limited, for statutory purpose and/or for the

purpose of the group consolidation. ERERETMEBMBERARER °
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at REXR  BENBRRBTEMAER
the end of the year. Hx o

Note: st

(i) During the year, the Group incorporated the subsidiaries, Shenzhen (i) ER o NEBDREMASIH B AT

RYTEEEBENRBRATRE
YFmAEEEEEREEERAF -

BJH Network Technology Limited (F3I|T & EEHERI AR A F)
and Shenzhen Qianhai Baijiahua Beverage Management Limited (%
YT ATE B EEEREE AR QA respectively.
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36.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 36. HEKEAR
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group REBEE-_ZE—RE+-A=+—H8H1t
entered into an agreement with JFRIITABERITER A FE - AEBEBE=FRIITE
7], an independent third party, to dispose of 90% equity BERRAER ARG HE - UWHE
interests in Shenzhen Baijiahua Yunshang Limited (“Baijiahua Y TEECEEREEEREAR(A
Yunshang”), which is principally engaged in wholesale FEEERE ) Z0%ME - BEZEER
of consumables, at a consideration of approximately TERERBESIERS  REAOAR
RMB90,000. The disposal was completed on 28 December #90,000T - HEER=_ZE—HF
2015. After completion of the disposal, Baijiahua Yunshang +-A=Z+ N \BZEX - ERHER
became an available-for-sale financial asset of the Group BEEEEKANEEZAIHEES
with 10% effective interests held by the Group. MEE  AEBEFB10%E R #Ex ©
RMB’000
AR®F T
Inventories =& 985
Trade receivables FEUE P BRI 9,209
Deposits and other receivables e Rk H A EAGRIE 5,860
Cash and bank balances B& KBTS 5,197
Tax recoverable G ek 301
Trade payables FEFE SRR (20,445)
Other payables and accruals HERNRIBERETEA (780)
327
Fair value of retained interest which became AT HEESLTEE V224
available-for-sale financial asset #mnFE (83)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HENB AR ZEIE (204)
Cash consideration ReRE 90
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEENBREESRHEFE .
Cash consideration RERE 90
Cash and bank balances disposal of HERE RIRITEH (5,197)
(5,107)
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and
in its investment activities. The financial risks include market
risk (including currency risk and interest risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the Board. The
overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long term
financial investments are managed to generate lasting
returns with acceptable risk levels.

It is not the Group’s policy to engage in the trading of
financial instruments for speculative purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed to
are described below.

(i) Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of
financial position relate to the following categories of
financial assets and financial liabilities:

37.

BEEREER A FEFE

AEBAEBEEHLE RREEH
ERESRTAMESVERR - M5
RieEmsRk(BREE¥RRK
MERER)  FERRIADHESE

LA
i

o o
ZN

FAF R BT AN B AR - I
HEEETYEF - EEMBRERZ
ERERERENEERERL TR
MZEE - BEANSEEHEFRHR
ERE - REERREATERZAR
REELRHEDRER -

AEBZHRIIFHEAEESE N
MERTAES - AREMEYRE
EMTRERSANT o

(i) cREEREREEET
R BRARKEINEBATE
MEERCRBEERNZET
(EV RN

2015 2014
—E-—REF —E 5

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Financial assets: SRMEE

Loans and receivables B R RN GIE

— Cash and bank balances — e RIBITEEES 293,271 321,703

— Trade receivables — RN E SRR 12,482 4,924

- Amount due from non-controlling — & Y JEH% A% A% B8

interest of a subsidiary 250 -

— Other receivables — H b FE U IR 19,932 25,539

- Pledged bank deposits —BERRITER - 100,000
325,935 452,166

Available-for-sale financial assets: At HELREE :

— Unlisted equity investments —FELETRARE 10,833 -
336,768 452,166
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37.

136

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 37.

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(i) Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

%§@@%E&a$ﬁﬁ§
(i %?ﬁ%&ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁm
&

2015 2014
—E-—REF —ZEE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT

Financial liabilities: SRAE:
Financial liabilities measured at WM EKAGEZ
amortised costs SRAaE

- Trade payables —ERESEXR 189,006 210,375

- Bank borrowing, secured —RITEE - DR - 100,000

- Other payables and accruals — E B B8 K BT ERIE 31,935 35,808

— Amount due to a director — R —REERIE 59 59
221,000 346,242

(ii)  Foreign currency risk
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has operation in the PRC so that the
majority of the Group’s revenues, expenses and cash
flows are denominated in RMB. Assets and liabilities
of the Group are mostly denominated in RMB, HK$
and US$. Any significant exchange rate fluctuations
of foreign currencies against RMB may have financial
impact to the Group.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
(ii)  Foreign currency risk (Continued)
The Group’s exposures at the reporting date
to currency risk arising from foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities in
currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate are set out below:

w.?ﬁ@@%ﬂ&ﬁ$ﬁﬁ§
mE
(i) SRR (E)
HRUIINESHERNERKEER
BENEAHERNINEEE
TRNEEEE  MAEER
BERAX T E®ERRE

2015 2014
—E-HF —TmF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Financial assets: SRMEE
Cash and bank balances RE RIRTTAER 8,510 966
US$’000 US$’'000
FTEx FET

Financial liabilities: sWas:
Bank borrowing, secured BEPRITEE - 16,110

Sensitivity analysis BREDW

At 31 December 2015, if RMB had strengthened by
5% against HK$ and US$, with all other variables held
constant, post-tax profit for the year and, retained
profits would have been approximately RMB347,000
higher (2014: RMB4,961,000 higher), as a result
of foreign exchange gains on translation of foreign
currency denominated financial assets and liabilities.

The same % decrease in the foreign currency
exchange rate on RMB against HK$ and US$ would
have the same magnitude on the Group’s post-tax
profit for the year and retained profits as shown above
but of opposite effect, on the basis all variances held
constant.

These are the same method and assumption used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis included in the
financial statements for the years ended 31 December
2014 and 2015.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to be effective.

R-_E—RAFE+-_A=+—
B wWmARBEEEIRET
F1ES% > MATEHEMEZET
B FABEGF RREEF
BERBEIINEHENSREE
e EsRGE E IS Mg g
AR#347,000c (=T — M
F o0 A R ¥ 4,961,000
JC) °

WHARUMHTE - ARE
3BT R LE K B TR
5 b A A B R
RRDEHEAS LR
BERIER ST AR -

P2 PR 9 7308 R R AR B AR L
E_F-NER-_F-HF
TZA=t—HALEFENKR
RFFENSBREDITAIRAE
I

AEE-EHrABREFEER
SMNERBREIBGR - WRAEA
B
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(iii)

(iv)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under the terms of the financial instrument
and cause a financial loss to the Group.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. Most of the sales transactions were settled in
cash basis or by credit card payment. Credit risk
on cash and bank balances is mitigated as cash is
deposited in banks of high credit rating.

The Group’s policy is to deal only with credit worthy
counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by
the credit control department. When considered
appropriate, customers may be requested to provide
proof as to their financial position. Customers who
are not considered creditworthy are required to pay
in advance or on delivery of goods. Payment record
of customers is closely monitored. Monthly reports of
customer payment history are produced and reviewed
by the finance department. Overdue balances and
significant trade receivables are highlighted. The
finance director will determine the appropriate
recovery actions.

This is no requirement for collateral or other credit
enhancement by the Group.

The credit and investment policies have been followed
by the Group since prior years and are considered to
have been effective in limiting the Group’s exposure
to credit risk to a desirable level.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk mainly
arises on cash and bank balances. The Group has not
used any derivative contracts to hedge its exposure
to interest rate risk. The Group has not formulated a
policy to manage the interest rate risk.
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(iii)

(iv)

FERR
FERBRESRTANRSY
FREARBES BT AGKE
TEEME  SAKEHRUGE
EERER

AEENEERRYEHRE
AREFBER - ABDHEX S
PREXERRNREE - @
RREEFHNSEEFTRZ
RIT - MEFERRS RIRTTE
BREEERR -

AEBOBR R EER RN
RHGEFRS - BRTHEPH
EEHHRERESEAMIENE
FETERMEEREL - NE
EREAT  BPHEWER
e L B B A 0 RO RE B 3L ©
TR RERRINEPAR
RNKLERNK - FEOM
KRB XNTIER - B
B A B SR 8RR & el B AP
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SRR EXRBE SRR -
175 4 B S T E B B RO RAT

& o

ZRER B I 4 B SRR R K
HApE AR -

AEE-BEAABEFENE
EREEBR  ARB/EER
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(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

A reasonable change in interest rate in the next
twelve months is assessed to result in immaterial
change in the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits. Changes in interest rates have no impact on
the Group’s other components of equity. The Group
adopts centralised treasury policies in cash and
financial management and focuses on reducing the
Group’s overall interest expense.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of trade payables and its
financing obligations and also in respect of its cash
flow management.

The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient cash
and bank balances and have available funding to
meet its working capital requirements. The Group’s
liquidity is dependent upon the cash received from
its customers. The directors of the Company are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in full its
financial obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the Group
since prior years and are considered to have been
effective in managing liquidity risks.

(iv)

(v)

MRmER(E)

HRARRT—EAMELERS
BEE) B TEHAKER
B R R BN ERE
B NEREHHAKERTE
HERE D WELE - A&
B3R & M B B B SRR R
EREHE - ZERNREAREE
ERNSMAX -

REE Rk
MEBETRREARE LR
TEHERITAAENRR - K
SEBENENE SRR LE
MBEEARREREREE
EHRHRBESRR

AEENBRRERTERE
NMIRITHERR - WERS B 2 PARC
BHEEESHE - AKEHH
MEE KB B TP WHAIR
T ARAREFEN  AKE
BEER A RARREBEITEE]
HARA TS A o

AEE-—BHrABEFENR
BESHER  URSEHEE
nBESEREFRK
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(v)

140

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its non-derivative as at 31 December
2014 and 2015. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included
on the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of the
liability is in instalments, each instalment is allocated
to the earliest period in which the Group is committed
to pay.

At 31 December 2015

37.

R-2-Rf+t-A=t-AH

BEERBEERQVENE

(#&)
(v)

Carrying undiscounted
amount

REE
RMB’000
ARBTR

REBESER(E)
ATamAREER_Z—H
FRZFE-—AF+ZA=1+—
HEENTESRMBENHGBRE
RHEIERR - BEEARER
BEENERE  aEEASE
B g ERBERNRE A H
iR - HABE I HEE  AIF
SRR EEREEAFEE
%’KE’\J%E,HHF& °©

Total
contractual

Repayable
within one
year or on
demand
—FRH
RREREE
RMB’000
ARET T

cash flows

SREME
RERBRE
RMB’000
ARBTR

Trade payables EHEZER 189,006 189,006 189,006
Other payables and accruals HENSERESTER 31,935 31,935 31,935
Amount due to a director EN—ZEEF08 59 59 59
Total @t 221,000 221,000 221,000
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-NE+=A=+-A

Trade payables [ERE SRR 210,375 210,375 210,375
Other payables and accruals HiENZIERENER 35,808 35,808 35,808
Amount due to a director EN—ZEEF0E 59 59 59
Bank borrowing, secured RITEE - BER 100,000 100,000 100,000
Total st 346,242 346,242 346,242

The Group considers expected cash flows from
financial assets in assessing and managing liquidity
risk, in particular, its cash resources and other liquid
assets that readily generate cash. The Group’s
existing cash resources and other liquid assets
significantly exceed the cash outflow requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)
AR R R MY (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
BE-_ZT-—RAF+-_A=+—RALEFE

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
provide an adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods
and services commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholder returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group, prevailing and projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell
assets to reduce debt.

Management regards total equity as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital
as at 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately
RMB563,872,000 (2014: RMB539,198,000), in which
management considers as optimal having considered the
projected capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities.

(@) Guangxi Yulin Store

In July 2011, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Yulin Hongyuan Real Estate
Development Limited (“Yulin Hongyuan”) pursuant to
which the Group would lease from Yulin Hongyuan
a property located at No.8 Baishigiao Road of
Yulin, Guangxi, the PRC for setting up a store (the
“Yulin Store”). The Group also entered into property
management agreements with a related company of
Yulin Hongyuan for the Yulin Store in July 2011.
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For the year ended 31 December 2015
FE+-A=+—BILEE

BHE_T—

(a)

Guangxi Yulin Store (Continued)

In October 2012, the Group has commenced legal
proceedings against Yulin Hongyuan and its related
company as Yulin Hongyuan has breached the lease
agreement for failing to hand over the property to the
Group before the deadline as stipulated in the lease
agreement. The Group demanded repayments of
the deposits and prepaid rentals and management
fees of an aggregate amount of approximately
RMB4,173,000 from Yulin Hongyuan and its related
company. The Group further claimed a sum of
approximately RMB1,669,000, being penalty for
breaching the agreements and the costs of the
proceedings.

In December 2012, Yulin Hongyuan and the related
company have filed counterclaims against the Group
for the alleged damage of an aggregate amount of
approximately RMB8,466,000 arising from the alleged
improper cancellation of the agreements by the Group
and the costs of the proceedings.

In July 2013, the court has announced its
judgement that the Group was required to bear
the alleged damage to Yulin Hongyuan with a total
of approximately RMB3,510,000; Yulin Hongyuan
was required to return the prepaid rent and deposit
to the Group of approximately RMB1,407,000 and
RMB938,000 respectively; the Group was required
to bear partial court processing fee of approximately
RMB25,000. In August 2013, the Group and Yulin
Hongyuan have lodged appeal against the decision by
the court separately.

In October 2013, the court has announced its
judgement that the Group was required to bear the
alleged damage to the related company of Yulin
Hongyuan with a total of approximately RMB678,000;
the related company of Yulin Hongyuan was required
to return the prepaid management fee and deposit
to the Group of approximately RMB1,097,000 and
RMB731,000 respectively; the Group was required to
bear the partial court processing fee of approximately
RMB12,000. In December 2013, the Group has
lodged appeal against the decision by the court.
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(a)

Guangxi Yulin Store (Continued)

In March 2014, the court has subsequently
cancelled its previous judgements regarding the
legal proceedings with Yulin Hongyuan in July 2013
as stated above and the legal proceedings will be
processed again by the court.

In July 2014, the court has announced its judgement
that the Group was required to bear the alleged
damage to the related company of Yulin Hongyuan
with a total of approximately RMB60,000; the
related company of Yulin Hongyuan was required
to return the prepaid management fee and deposit
to the Group of approximately RMB1,097,000 and
RMB731,000 respectively; the Group was required to
bear the partial court processing fee of approximately
RMB16,000. In August 2014, the Group has lodged
application for compulsory execution of the decision
by the court.

In August 2014, the court has announced its
judgement that the Group was required to bear
the alleged damage and rental loss compensation
to Yulin Hongyuan with a total of approximately
RMB1,754,000 and RMB2,815,000 respectively;
Yulin Hongyuan was required to return the rental
deposit to the Group of approximately RMB938,000;
the Group was required to bear partial court
processing fee of approximately RMB38,000. In
November 2014, the Group has lodged appeal
against the decision by the court.

In February 2015, the court has announced its
judgement that Yulin Hongyuan was required to
return the prepaid rent and deposit to the Group
of approximately RMB1,407,000 and RMB938,000
respectively; Yulin Hongyuan was required to bear
all court processing fee. In October 2015, Yulin
Hongyuan have lodged appeal against the decision by
the court but has been turned down.
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(a)

Guangxi Yulin Store (Continued)

In October 2015, the court has cancelled its previous
judgements regarding the legal proceedings with the
related company of Yulin Hongyuan in October 2013
and July 2014 as stated above respectively and the
legal proceedings will be processed again by the
court.

The directors are of the view that the counterclaims
of alleged damage granted by the court of
approximately RMB60,000 to the related company
of Yulin Hongyuan is groundless on the basis of
the legal opinion obtained from the Group’s legal
advisor. Therefore, no provision for the counterclaims
of approximately RMB60,000 was made as at 31
December 2015. Furthermore, the directors are of
the view that adequate provision for legal fees in
relation to the proceedings has been made as at 31
December 2015.

Yunnan Kunming Store

In October 2011, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Yunnan Zhenwan Corporate
Management Limited (“Yunnan Zhenwan”) pursuant
to which the Group would lease from Yunnan
Zhenwan a property located at Laohaigeng Road of
Xisan District, Kunming, Yunnan, the PRC for setting
up a store.

In December 2012, the Group has commenced
legal proceedings against Yunnan Zhenwan and two
related companies as they failed to hand over the
property in condition stipulated in the agreement
to the Group before the deadline as stipulated in
the agreement. The Group demanded repayments
of the deposit paid of approximately RMB529,000
and further claimed a sum of approximately
RMB7,784,000 for damage of economic loss arising
from the breach of the agreement and the costs of the
proceedings.

In February 2013, Yunnan Zhenwan and its related
companies have filed counterclaim against the
Group for the alleged damage of approximately
RMB2,239,000 arising from the alleged improper
cancellation of the agreement by the Group and the
costs of the proceedings.
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(b)

(c)

Yunnan Kunming Store (Continued)
In November 2013, the court has announced its

judgement that Yunnan Zhenwan and its related

companies were required to refund the rental deposit
of approximately RMB529,000, and compensate
the Group for the decoration fee on leasehold
improvement of approximately RMB1,106,000 plus
a refund of decoration deposit of approximately
RMB30,000. On the other hand, the Group was
required to compensate Yunnan Zhenwan and its
related companies for the amount of approximately
RMB61,000.

In June 2014, the Group received the refund of rental
deposit of approximately RMB529,000, decoration
deposit of approximately RMB30,000 and the
compensation from Yunnan Zhenwan and its related
companies of approximately RMB1,106,000 and
recognised the compensation as other income for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

Shatoujiao Store

In April 2005, the Group entered into a lease
agreement with Shenzhen Rongjin Industrial Group
Limited (“Shenzhen Rongjin”) pursuant to which the
Group would lease from Shenzhen Rongjin a property
located at Shayan Road, Yantian District, Shenzhen,
the PRC for the operation of a store (the “Shatoujiao
Store”). In June 2011, the Group entered into another
lease agreement with McDonald’s Restaurants
(Shenzhen) Limited (“McDonald’s”) to sub-lease part
of its store.

In July 2013, the Group sent a letter to inform
Shenzhen Rongjin and McDonald’s regarding its
early termination of the lease agreements effective in
October 2013.
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(c)

Shatoujiao Store (Continued)

In October 2013, McDonald’s has commenced legal
proceeding against the Group for its early termination
of the lease agreement. The Group had reached a
settlement agreement with McDonald’s for which
Shenzhen Rongjin is willing to lease the property
directly to McDonald’s which is currently occupied
by McDonald’s provided that the Group is willing to
pay a total of RMB2 million to Shenzhen Rongjin as
a compensation. The Group paid RMB2 million to
Shenzhen Rongjin in November 2013.

In December 2013, Shenzhen Rongjin has
commenced legal proceedings against the Group
for its early termination of the lease agreement.
Shenzhen Rongjin demanded the forfeiture of the
rental deposits of approximately RMB1,222,100
paid by the Group to Shenzhen Rongjin and
further claimed the Group for the compensation of
approximately RMB66,505,000.

In May 2014, the Group had reached a settlement
agreement (“Settlement Agreement”) with Shenzhen
Rongjin. Pursuant to the Settlement Agreement, the
Group and Shenzhen Rongjin mutually agreed to
early terminate the lease agreement immediately after
signing the Settlement Agreement, and the Group
made a cash compensation (“Cash Compensation”) in
a total of approximately RMB12,000,000 to Shenzhen
Rongjin. The rental deposits of RMB1,222,100
paid by the Group was set off against the Cash
Compensation. The Group and Shenzhen Rongjin
withdrew the legal proceedings accordingly for
the year ended 31 December 2014. Provision of
compensation of approximately RMB3,000,000 had
been recognised for the year ended 31 December
2013, an amount of approximately remaining
RMB9,000,000 of compensation had been recorded
and included in other operating expenses during the
year ended 31 December 2014.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

AFPBEBE

RESULTS

”,%ﬁ

Year ended 31 December

BZE+-A=t—RALEE

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F——% ZF--f CZF-=f CZT-NmF ZB-I¥
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT AR%Tn
Revenue A 783,773 835,354 846,155 821,249 839,674
Cost of inventories sold EEBFERK (532,285) (565,700) (563,690) (556,965) (579,767)
251,488 269,654 282,465 264,284 259,907
Other operating income Hipg g WA 92,469 70,377 62,325 74,949 66,169
Increase in fair value of BENE
investment properties AEEEM - 31,450 10,000 7,000 3,100
Selling and distribution costs HE R AR (230,954) (231,341) (233,248) (213,675) (214,561)
Administrative expenses TS (31,727) (38,052) (39,177) (42,222) (43,887)
Other operating expenses HhiSER% (3,827) (3,036) (11,772) (10,317) (5,237)
Finance cost BB A L (1,114 (3,707) (1,238) (13)
Share of loss of an associate JE(RESE N FIE 1B - - = (2,009) (1,475)
Profit before income tax PR FT {558 A& A 77,449 97,938 66,886 76,772 64,003
Income tax expense FEHRY (18,962) (25,650) (21,508) (18,116) (18,414)
Profit/(loss) attrioutable to: UTATREEFE/
(B#) -
- Owners of the Company -BRAEEFEA 58,487 72,288 45,378 58,656 45,560
- Non-controlling interest — R R R - - - = (1)
58,487 72,288 45,378 58,656 45,589
Dividends ) 29,257 29,258 20,854 21,165 13,176
Earnings per share GRET RMBAR®  RMBAR®  RMBAR®  RMBARE  RMBAEY
- Basic —-EX 5.64 cents?  6.97 cents?  4.37 cents”  5.65cents?  4.40 centss
- Diluted —#% RMBAR®  RMBARE RMBAR®E RMBAR®E RMBAEX

5.64 cents?

6.97 cents?  4.37 cents?

5.65 cents7y

4.40 cents %
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Five-Year Financial Summary (Continued)
hEMBEE (&)

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

2011

EERER

As at 31 December

2012

—E——F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT  AR®TR

Rt=A=+-H
2013 2014 2015
—F-=f ZF-WF Z%¥-1Ff
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETRE  AR®TR

Total assets BEE 726,642 931,755 906,511 930,596 835,790

Total liabilities BafE (284,828) (446,910) (405,546) (391,398) (271,918)

Net assets BEFE 441,814 484,845 500,965 539,198 563,872
Note: BEE -

148

The results for year ended 31 December 2015, and the assets and liabilities
as at 31 December 2015 have been extracted from the audited consolidated
statement of comprehensive income and audited consolidated statement of
financial position as set out on pages 56 and 58 respectively, of the financial
statements.
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